Agenda Memo

Friday, June 11, 2021 10:30 AM

AGENDA MEMO

MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MONDAY-JUNE 14, 2021
8 AM
100 EAST MAIN STREET - ROOM 103
CRAWFORDSVILLE, IN 47933

Consent Agenda
Approval of Claims:
May 24, 2021 to June 14, 2021
Accounts Payable: $34,831,733.01 Payroll : $388,806.23
Approval of Meeting Minutes: May 24, 2021

Parking Lot Lease Agreement for 4 Spaces - Public Defenders Office

At the 5-24 Board of Commissioners meeting, a lease agreement was approved to lease 3
parking spaces from First Merchants Bank for the Public Defender's Office. The Public Defender's
Office actually leases 4 spaces, so a new lease agreement has been developed to replace the
agreement that was previously approved.

KONE, Inc Proposal - Binford Street Building Elevator Repair
The door operator device in the elevator at the Binford Street facility needs repair. The cost is
$4,153. The CCD fund will be used to pay for the repair.

Republic Services Proposal - June 1, 2021 to May 31, 2024
Renewal of the trash collection services contract with Republic Services for the County's
facilities.

RBM Contract - Purchase Additional Election Equipment - Clerk's Office
Purchase of 13 additional voter units at a total cost of $41,200. The amount was budgeted in the
Clerk's budget for 2021.

Letter of Understanding: Bridge Deck Overlay on SR 25

Establishes unofficial local detour due to the closure of State Road 25 over Coal Creek for a
bridge deck overlay. The State will reimburse the County for expenses to repairing the local
roads on the unofficial local detour due to damage caused by the detour traffic. The estimated
cost is 54,924.

New Business
Award Recommendation: Salt Barn Bid Award, Contract Approval and Notice to Proceed
The bids were opened at the 5-24 Commissioners meeting and have been reviewed by County
Engineer Jim Peck. We are recommending that the low bid be awarded to Greystone
Construction Company in the amount of $196,800 and that the Commissioners also approve the
contract and issue a notice to proceed.

Ben Hur Agreement
Agreement approves the transfers of ownership of the Ben Hur building from APD to Ben Hur
LLC. It also establishes a start date no later than December 31, 2021 with a completion date by
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the end of 2024. If the project is not completed by the end of 2024, the County may assess a fine
of S50 per day.

Plan Commission Appointment

Aaron Morgan has resigned from the Plan Commission. Bob Campbell has agreed to be
appointed to replace

Mr. Morgan.

Tyler Technologies: Assessors' Vendor Contract

Contract to conduct annual adjustments and cyclical reassessment of properties for an amount
not to exceed $20,000. Contract will replace the services provided by an employee that has
resigned.

Ordinances
Introduction: Ordinance 2021-17: Creating 2021 Problem Solving Drug Court Grant Fund
Ordinance establishes a new fund for a $10,000 grant for the Drug Court.

Introduction: Ordinance 2021-18: Creating the Immunization and Vaccines for Children-Covid 19
Grant Fund

Establishes new fund for a $78,787.13 grant for the Department of Health to promote and
provide Covid-19 vaccinations focused on vulnerable and hard to reach populations.
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Agenda

Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:16 PM

AGENDA

MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS MEETING
MONDAY-JUNE 14, 2021
8 AM
100 EAST MAIN STREET - ROOM 103
CRAWFORDSVILLE, IN 47933

Call to Order: Board President John E. Frey
Pledge of Allegiance and Prayer

Consent Agenda
Approval of Claims:
May 24, 2021 to June 14, 2021
Accounts Payable: $34,831,733.01 Payroll : $388,806.23
Approval of Meeting Minutes: May 24, 2021
Parking Lot Lease Agreement for 4 Spaces - Public Defenders Office
KONE, Inc Proposal - Binford Street Building Elevator Repair
Republic Services Proposal - June 1, 2021 to May 31, 2024
RBM Contract - Purchase Additional Election Equipment - Clerk's Office
Letter of Understanding - Bridge Deck Overlay On SR25

New Business
Award Recommendation: Salt Barn Bid Award, Contract Approval and Notice to Proceed
Ben Hur Agreement
Plan Commission Appointment
Tyler Technologies: Assessors' Vendor Contract

Ordinances
Introduction: Ordinance 2021-17: Creating 2021 Problem Solving Drug Court Grant Fund
Introduction: Ordinance 2021-18: Creating the Immunization and Vaccines for Children-Covid 19 Grant Fund

Other Business

Adjournment
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Minutes 5-24-21

Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:25 PM
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MINUTES
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COMMISSIONER MEETING
MONDAY, MAY 24, 2021

The Montgomery County Commissioners met in regular session on Monday, May 24, 2021 at 8:00 am at the
Montgomery County Courthouse, 100 E. Main Street — Room 103, Crawfordsville, Indiana.

Present were Board members: Board President John E. Frey, Vice President Commissioner Jim Fulwider and
Commissioner Dan Guard, Member. Also present Board Attorney Dan Taylor; County Administrator Tom Klein; Auditor
Jennifer Andel; Building Administrator Marc Bonwell; E911 Director Sherri Henry; Sheriff Ryan Needham; County
Engineer Jim Peck; Highway Director Jake Lough; EMA Director Shari Harrington; Health Administrator

Amber Reed; Treasurer Heather Laffoon; and Commissioners Executive Assistant Lori Dossett.

CALLTO ORDER
Commissioner Board President John E. Frey called the meeting to order @ 8:00 am and led the prayer.

CONSENT AGENDA
Approval of Claims: May 10, 2021 to May 24, 2021
Accounts Payable - $1,887,015.60; Payroll - $405,758.50
Approval of Minutes: May 10, 2021
Parking Lot Lease Agreement — Public Defender’s Office — 3 spaces — First Merchants Bank parking lot
Commissioner Fulwider moved to approve the consent agenda items. Seconded by Commissioner Guard.
Motion passed 3-0.

NEW BUSINESS
Open Salt Barn Bids
Attorney Dan Taylor opened the following two bids:
Graystone Construction - $196,890
Bulk Storage, Inc. - $225,330
Commissioner Guard moved to take the Salt Barn bids under advisement. Seconded by Commissioner Fulwider.
Motion passed 3-0.

Metronet Business Agreement — Fiber & Lease of VoiP Phone Equipment

Metronet Business Agreement is the final agreement for the switch from AT&T to Metronet. The agreement
covers the expenses of laying fiber to the County’s dark ring and tie into the ring at the new annex.
Commissioner Fulwider moved to approve the Metronet Business Agreement. Seconded by Commissioner Guard.
Motion passed 3-0.

Approval of Contracts & Notice to Proceed — Bridge 47 & 114

County Engineer James Peck requested approval of the Contracts and Notice to Proceed with CLR, Inc. in the
amount of $364,308.75 for Bridge 47 and $405,430.10 for Bridge 114.

Commissioner Guard moved to approve the contracts with CLR and issue the Notice to Proceed for Bridge 47 &
114. Seconded by Commissioner Fulwider. Motion passed 3-0.

ADJOURNMENT
There being no further business before the Board, Commissioner Fulwider moved to adjourn. Commissioner
Guard seconded. Motion passed 3-0.
Meeting adjourned at 8:12 am.

Minutes prepared by Commissioners Executive Assistant Lori Dossett.

1|Page
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The next regular meeting will be held on Monday, June 14, 2021 @ 8:00 am
@ Montgomery County Courthouse, 100 E. Main Street — Room 103, Crawfordsville, IN 47933,

MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS:

John E. Frey, Board President

Attest:

Jennifer Andel, Auditor

2|Page
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Parking Lot Lease Agreement

Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:27 PM

At the 5-24 Board of Commissioners meeting, a lease agreement was approved to lease 3 parking spaces
from First Merchants Bank for the Public Defender's Office. The Public Defender's Office actually leases
4 spaces, so a new lease agreement has been developed to replace the agreement that was previously
approved.
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PARKING LOT LEASE AGREEMENT

THIS LEASE AGREEMENT is entered into on this 15t day of June, 2021 by and between First
Merchants Bank, an Indiana Bank, hereinafter called “Lessor” and Public Defender,
hereinafter referred to as the “Lessee.”

PARKING: Lessor agrees to lease 4 parking spaces as identified in Exhibit A in the
amount of $25.00 per parking space per month.

TERM: The term of this lease shall be two (2) years commencing on June 1,
2021 and ending on May 31, 2023.

RENT: Rent shall be paid by Lessee to Lessor monthly in advance of the first
day of every calendar month.

NOTICE ADDRESS: All rent payments shall be delivered to the following address:
First Merchants Bank
ATTN: Crawfordsville Parking Lot
PO BOX 427

Noblesville, IN 46061

IN WITNESS WHEREOQF, the parties hereto have signed this Parking Lot Lease
Agreement as of the date written.

LESSEE: Public Defender LESSOR: First Merchants Bank, an Indiana Bank
127 E Main St, Suite 200 200 East Jackson Street
Crawfordsville, IN 47933 Muncie, IN 47305

o

Kevin Scharnowske
Printed Name: Director, Facilities & Property Management

Date: Date: % -2 ]
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Crawfordsville Parking Lot Lease Agreement

Exhibit A
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Kone, Inc. Elevator Repair

Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:27 PM

The door operator device in the elevator at the Binford Street facility needs repair. The cost is $4,153.
The CCD fund will be used to pay for the repair.
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KONE Care™ K/oINJE]

PEOPLE FLOW REPAIR AND UPGRADE PROPOSAL

05/25/2021 KONE Inc.
5201 Park Emerson Dr. Ste O
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURTHOUSE Indianapolis, IN 46203
100 E MAIN RM 102 Tel: +3172813753
CRAWFORDSVILLE, Indiana 47933-1709 Fax: +13177880064
www.kone.us
ATTN: Marc Bonwell nate.neal@kone.com

Re: MONTGOMERY COUNTY OFFICE BUILDING-Per tech
recommendation - Kone will provide material and labor to convert

existing doo
Equip Inventory Number Address
20042835 PASS 47025 307 BINFORD 47933 CRAWFORDSVILLE

We propose to furnish and install the labor, materials, tools and supervision to perform the following
work:
Description

Per tech recommendation - Kone will provide material and labor to convert existing door operator
to a solid-state operator. This includes motor, control w/board (104), and cover.

Price

Our total price to perform the above-mentioned work amounts to $4,153.00, plus applicable taxes.
Our price includes applicable labor, material and permit fees. This proposal is not binding on KONE until approved by an
authorized KONE representative. Pricing is subject to KONE's attached Terms and Conditions for tendered repairs and, by
signing below, Purchaser hereby agrees to these Terms and Conditions. Price is valid for 30 days from the date of this
proposal, The agreed delivery times for the project may need to be extended because of delays caused by measures
undertaken to stop the spreading of the Coronavirus (2018-nCoV) epidemic, such as mandatory holiday extensions and
transportation restrictions imposed by authorities in China and other countries, and the availability of personnel, logistics
providers and supply chains, due to the epidemic. KONE imposes a surcharge for payment made via credit card that is not
greater than our cost of acceptance. The surcharge that we impose for this type of transaction is a percentage of the amount
paid via credit card, which will be notified to the customer at the payment portal.

PURCHASER ACCEPTANCE: The proposalis  Respectfully submitted by,
hereby signed and accepted on behalf of KONE Inc.
MONTGOMERY COUNTY COURTHOUSE

(Purchaser Signature) Nate Neal, Sales Consultant

(Print Name) (Approved By) Authorized Representative

(Print Title) Title

Date: / / Date: / /

REV 06/16 Page 1(2)

Tender # T-0004697133
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS
This proposal is subject to the fi ing terms and conditions, all of which are hereby agreed to:

KONEshanwbmnhvo&ceﬂorﬂnvamo'mawrialdemredmdlorlabovpeﬂomed.Iesstmdownplymempaidmm.molpro-
posd-ccemnu.Aﬁndhvobed\allbcbwedbyKONEuponcompmionofmeworkmdshallncbdelllbahneesdue,Pumhuev
agrees to pay the of any tax imposed by any "_bw.olbyanyltw-nmdnwmodmofwspropoul.buoduponm
fer, use, Nip or p jion of the equip invol "'mlhewotkprwidodhereinKONEnnNutMngmlodiwonunue
our work at anytime until we have assurance, satisfactory to us, that payments will be made as ag d. Final pay shall b due
and payable upon completion of the work described in this proposal. Failure to pay any sum due to KONE within thirty (30) days of the
invoice will be a ial breach. A delinquent pay charge calcut d at the rate of 1% % per month, or if such rate is usurious then
atthe d rate under appli faw, shall be applied to the delinquent pay in the event of default on the payment provisions
herein, Purchaser agrees to pay, in addition to any defaulted t, all ys' fees, coll cost or court costs in connection
therewith. The inery. impl and app: furnished h der remain KONE's personal property and KONE retains title
mtoumilﬁnalpaymomismadn.withrighnommndmqueuldeumnwuulhmwohmyd
i ive of the of hy ‘mmemw.mmmdwu.uunuh,mmumdm

o pae P
The states requiring notice prior to filing a lien, this notice requi is hereby plied with
KONE shall not be liable for ge or delay d directly or indirectly by accidents, g strikes, lockouts, work i p
or other labor dispute, fire, theft, floods, Acts of God, or any cause beyond KONE's control. Regardless of the type of delay, KONE shall
not be liable for any R q |, liquidated or special damag: including but not limited to fines, penalties, loss of profits.
goodwill, business or loss of use of equipment or property.
Purch agrees to provide safe access to the equipment and machine room areas. Should conditions develop beyond KONE's control,
king the building or prem in which KONE's personnel are working unsafe, KONE reserves the right to discontinue work until such
unsafe conditions are cted Should damage occur to KONE's material or work on the premises, by fire, theft or otherwise, Pur-
chaser shall compensate us therefore
Any asbestos removal necessitated by work ribed in this Proposal will be the Pt ‘s responsibility. P shall provid
ion that the asb has been abated from the KONE work area and air clearance reports shall be made available upon
Purch is responsibl for all costs of oil disposal should it be determined that oil from Pt ‘s equip is cor inat

ed

KONEundemkntop«fommisworklneo:«amitywimﬂumudapplbdcodunndsmmeﬂwalmomdemuﬁondtm
proposal, h , NO gf tee can be made that all code violations or defects have been found. This work is not intended as a guar-
antee against failure or malfunction of equip at any future time.
IlisagraodandundemoodmKONEnnotresponlbbh'ordmages..ithermmevenical P quip! or to the building.
or for any personal injury or death, arising from or resulting from any code req d safety tests p on this equipment.

g in this proposal shall be d to mean that KONE assumes any liability of any nature whatsoever arising out of, relating to
or in any way connected with the use or operation of the equip d above. Pu shall be solely responsible for the use,
repair and mai of the equip and for taking such steps including but not limited to providing P i ing
sbgmmdo&mconuohmytomumtheumydwmcrorndoopommdlheequipmmt
Neither KONE nor its affiliates, idiaries or divisi shall be responsible or liable for any damages, claims, suits, expenses and
payments on account of or resulting from any injury, death or damage to property arising or resulting from the misuse, abuse or neglect
of the equipment herein named or any other device covered by this proposal.

Purchaser shall at all times and at P ‘s own cost, in a commercial general liability policy covering bodily injury and proper-
ty damage with the limits of liability Purch. ily carry ( ’_KONEuadditionalimured)arbmgwtd»nuMmpmvid-
ed under this Authorization and/or the ownership, mai use or operation of the equip ibed herein.

It is agreed and d that Purch is solely responsible for ongoing mai and care of the equipment described above.
IT IS EXPRESSLY UNDERSTOOD, IN CONSIDERATION OF OUR PERFORMANCE OF THIS WORK THAT PURCHASER ASSUMES
ALL LIABILITY FOR THE USE, MAINTENANCE OR OPERATION OF THE EQUIPMENT DESCRIBED ABOVE AND FOR ANY INJURY,
INCLUDING DEATH, TO ANY PERSON OR PERSONS AND FOR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY OR LOSS OF USE THEREOF, ON AC-
COUNT OF OR RESULTING FROM THE PERFORMANCE OF THE WORK TO BE DONE HEREIN, AND AGREES TO THE EXTENT
PERMITTED BY LAW TO DEFEND, INDEMNIFY AND HOLD HARMLESS KONE, ITS OFFICERS, DIRECTORS AND EMPLOYEES
FROM ALL DAMAGES, CLAIMS, SUITS, EXPENSES AND PAYMENTS ON ACCOUNT OF OR RESULTING FROM ANY SUCH IN-
JURY, DEATH OR DAMAGE TO PROPERTY, EXCEPT THAT RESULTING FROM THE SOLE NEGLIGENCE OF KONE INC. Pur-
chaser hereby waives any and all nights of recovery, arising as a matter of law or otherwise, which Purchaser might now or hereafter
have against KONE Inc.
KONE the ials and ip of the equip for 90 days after pletion. P 's dy is limited to repair or
replacement of a defective part. in KONE's sole discretion, and excludes labor. In no event shall KONE be responsible for damage due
to normal wear and tear, abuse, mi gl womormpainormodvfmm-bycmm.oranyounrumbeyondmo
control of KONE. KONE DISCLAIMS ANY OTHER WARRANTY OF ANY KIND, EITHER EXPRESSED OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING
WITHOUT LIMITATION THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. OR
NONINFRINGEMENT
Unless otherwise agreed, it is understood that the work shall be performed during regular working hours of regular working days of the
trade. If rtime work is ly agreed upon and performed, the additional price, at KONE's usual rates for such work, shall
be added to the contract price herein named.
It is expressly understood and agreed all prior agreements written or verbal regarding the subject matter herein are void and the ac-
MMMMWMIMMMMMMMﬂINMWMMmb, posal. Any changes to this proposal
must be made in writing and signed by both parties
The terms and conditions set forth wmmdlmwmmwgmumlmmympoﬂonnod‘ANDshallmilowmd
supersede any terms and conditions ined in any d provided by the Purch
The chhuovdoeahemby-gwoﬂnexdmwevmuﬂmmydbpmwmmpuﬁamanbelnmecwmydRocklm. [
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Republic Services Proposal

Tuesday, June 08, 2021 3:36 PM

Renewal of the trash collection services contract with Republic Services for the County's facilities.
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For,

PROPOSAL

?ﬂ& SERVICES
6/3/2021
NO Fuel,
Environmental or | 36 month
Montgomery County: June 1, 2021-May 31, 2024 altaoeciny Auto
Fees Renewa!
Increase
Site Location Type Quantity Size Frequency Cost Proposal Years 2
and 3
Montgomery County Auditor 110 W South BLVD, Crawfordsville Trash 1 4 EOW S 151.00 | $ 98.00 5%
786/0006025 A217334597 Extra Lift
S yard S 75.00
Montgomery County Highway 818 Whitlock Ave, Crawfordsville Trash 1 6 1xweek |$36063($ 285.00 5% |6 yard $ 75.00
786/0006028 A217334843 | yard $ 75.00
|Montgomery County Courthouse 100 £ Main St, Crawfordsville Trash 1 4 Ixweek [5267.30(5 193.00 5% Overages $ 35.00
|786/00086022 A217334239
Relocate  § 75.00
Montgomery County Jail 600 Memorial Dr, Crawfordsville Trash 1 8 Ixweek |[S5392.44 (S 328.50 5%|
786/0006030 A217334530 Removal  $ 110.00
[Montgomery County Health Dept 308 W Market St, Crawfordsville Trash 1 B 1x week N/A |5 193.00 5%
Inew A217334427
Signed Date
Montgomery County
Signed Date

Republic Services
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TERMS AND CONDITIONS

AGREEMENT. Eggﬁbﬂggomﬁgﬁgm&94.ﬁgﬁnngﬁéq.ggqain%?m&_ﬂﬁ.g.y 1§ Customer's Site 15 Jocated widuna
Ea“”:ﬁlﬂ!&&n.—.aloag m this Agreement conflict with the applicable franchise agreement with respect to the Senvices covered by suck franchuse agreement. the terms and conditions m the franchise agreement
shall

TERM (SCHEDULED AND ON-CALL SERVICES) FOR ALL SCHKEDULED AND ON-CALL SERVICES, THE INITIAL TERM OF THIS AGREEMENT SHALL BEGIN ON TEE DATE WHEN SERVICE COMMENCES AND
CONTINUE FOR 36 MONTHS UNLESS OTHERWISE SPECIFIED, THIS AGREEMENT SHALL AUTOMATICALLY AND SUCCESSIVELY RENEW FOR 36 MONTH UNLESS EITHER PARTY GIVES WRITTEN NOTICE OF
TERMINATION TO THE OTHER AT LEAST 60 DAYS. BUT NOT MORE THAN 180 DAYS. BEFORE THE END OF THE THEN-CURRENT TERM.

TERM (TEMPORARY SERVICES). FOR ALL TEMPORARY SERVICES. THE TERM SHALL BEGIN ON THE EFFECTIVE DATE AND CONTINUE THROUGH THE FINAL LIFT OF THE TEMPORARY CONTAINER(S)

WASTE DEFINITIONS. "Waste Matenal” means all non-hazardous solid waste and Recyclable Matenal Waste Matenal excludes all rad volatile. Sammable, xpl qulated medical. mf biomedical
bichazardous, pollutants. contanunates, of hazardous waste, toxic sub Rﬂggukggga5&.!&.»%55«8__851.4.59%w&&ung.
determunes can be recycled such as almumum. used b 2e containers, cardboard (free of wax). ferrous metal cans, mixed office paper. newspaper. and plastics contamers.

SCOPE OF SERVICES. Customer grants to Company the exclusive night to collect and dispose of and/or recycle all of Customer’s Waste Materis] ot 2 scheduled and or temporary basis a3 set forth m the Service Detatls ("Services”), and
Company agrees to furnish such Services in compbance with all applicable 1, federal. state. or local laws or regulanons ("Applicable Laws™). Cu D and that all matenal 1 be collected under this Agreement
shall be only acceptable Waste Matenal C agrees not to deposit, or pernut the deposit for collection of any Exchuded Waste Title to and hability for any Excluded Waste shall remain with Customer and shall at no time pass to
Company. Company shall scquire title to conforming Waste Materials when they are collected or d by Company.

PAYMENT AND CHARGES. Customer shall pay Company all rates, fees, taxes and other amounts payable tnder this Agreement for the Services ("Charges™) within 20 days after the date of Company’s immoice Any mvoiced amounts not

recerved by their due date are subject to a late payment fise. and any pavment returned for msufficient funds 15 subject to an insufficient funds fee. both m an amount at Compamy’s discretion up to the maximum smount allowed by Apphcable
Law Customer acknowledges that auy late or insufficient finds fees charged by Company are not to be considered a penalty or mterest but are a reasonsble charge for late or mnuficient payments 1f indicated in the Service Details, Customer

EB..EE&#R«.EJ.E.&Q&PR%E.89!..4#3%Euzggﬁngaﬁsﬁggﬁ&&ng.uﬁdﬁiging.gg
from tne 1o time by showing the amount on Customer's mvoice (additional information regarding these fees 15 available o the “Understanding O Fees” page of Company's website. www republ: com) ADMIN. FRF and ERF are not
associated with any explicit cost to service Customer's account but are designed to heip Company recover cerain costs and achieve an acceptable operating margin. If applicable. Company may impose additonal Charges at its prevailing rates
for extra service. extra yards. minmum Lift. contamnation. service attenupts and contamer delivery. rel ] and exchange. and other additional services not listed in the Service Detatls. If Conmpany becomes concemed about

G er's crecitworth and'or C makes any late pay Company may require Cu to pay a deposit in an mmount equal to two meonths’ Charges under this Agr 1f allowed by Applicable Law: The rates set forth 1 the
Service Details do not melude taxes or franchase and or local fees. which shall be separately i d on C 7's mvoice where apphcable

ADJUSTMENTS TO CHARGES. Notwithstding any mformats ined in the Service Details, Company may, from time to tme by notice to Customer {on 1ts mvoice). add a surcharge. fee or mcrease any Charges provided in this
Agreement to account for: () increased Company costs due 1o uncontrollable events mchuding. but not limuted to, changes i Applicable Laws, imposition of taxes. fees or sweharges, or acts of God such 35 fires, weather. disease. stkes or
terronsu (b) 1 d disposal or p sing costs: (c) d transp costs, (d) costs or fees due to the inchusion of Excluded Waste and or contamination: (e) decreased value of Recyelable Matenal or changes in commodity
markets: or () actual Services or equupment that differ from those listed in the Service Details. Subject to any Comments m the Service Details. Coupany may. from Sme o time by notice to Customer (on1ts urvaice), increase any Charges
provided m tins Agreement to aclueve or mamtam an acceptable operating margin as determuned in Company's sole di Company may also Charges for any other reason with Customer’s consent. which may be evidenced

verbally. i wnting, or by the parties’ actions and practices.

SERVICE CHANGES. The parties may change the type, size or amount of equipment. the type ot frequency of Service, and comespondingly the Charges by mutual agreement, which may be evidenced verbally. in writing. by payment of the
imvoice, or by the parnes’ actions and practices Fﬁnnﬁ-nﬁalngswnﬂoﬂ-unfgwﬂnggﬁmigsg?u&unﬂBﬂgﬂgﬁﬂa&nogﬁ&ﬂ&?gﬁﬁ??
parties agree that this Agreement shall continue w full force and effect as so adjusted.

xMmeZmBE.MONMO_H_SBﬂbnﬁmwrg.aggs.gggng&!ia. ngg.ﬂ__&rmﬂEsasgaazgﬂgnig_gglﬂinﬂriﬂ
damage resulting from Company's handhing of the equipment) Customer shall use the equipment only for its proper and intended purpose and shall not overload (by weight or volume). move, or alter the equip faC 5

o, f 24 ¥
moved from Customer’s Site Location by anyone other than Conspany. Customer agrees to pay Conpany 230 per moved contamner. which amount 15 a bl of the damage Company will inar from the unauthonzed moving of its
contamer After the Initial Tenn. Company may mcrease the fee for the unauthorized moving of its contamer at its discretion. Customer shall provide safe. unobsticted access to the equpment on the scheduled collection day. Company may
charge an additonal fee for any addizonal coll service required by Cy r's failure to provide access. Company shall not be responsible for any damages o Gy sp curbing. or other dmving sufaces resulting from

Company providmg service at Customer’s Site Location.

INDEMNTFICATION. COMPANY SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS CUSTOMER FROM AND AGAINST ANY LOSSES TO THE EXTENT ARISING FROM (A) COMPANY'S BREACH OF THIS
AGREEMENT: OR (B) COMPANY'S NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT. THE OBLIGATIONS SET FORTH IN THIS SECTION SHALL SURVIVE THE EXPIRATION AND/OR TERMINATION OF THIS
AGREEMENT, CUSTOMER SHALL INDEMNIFY, DEFEND, AND HOLD HARMLESS TO THE FULLEST EXTENT PERMITTED BY LAW COMPANY, ITS PARENT. AND CORPORATE AFFILIATES FROM AND
AGAINST ANY AND ALL CLADMS, DAMAGES, SUTTS. PENALTIES, FINES, REMEDIATION COSTS, AND LIABILITIES (INCLUDING COURT COSTS AND REASONABLE ATTORNEY'S' FEES) (COLLECTIVELY,
"LOSSES") ARISING FROM () CUSTOMER'S BREACH OF THIS AGREEMENT: (B) CUSTOMER'S NEGLIGENCE OR WILLFUL MISCONDUCT: (C) EXCLUDED WASTE CONTAINED IN CUSTOMER'S WASTE
MATERIAL; AND (D) CUSTOMER'S USE, OPERATION, OR POSSESSION OF COMPANY™S EQUIPMENT.

SUSPENSION: TERMINATION. If amv amount due frons Customer is not pasd withun 60 days after the date of Company’s imvosce. Compauy may, without notice and without temumatmg this Agreement. suspend collecting and disposing of
Waste Matenal until Customer has paid such amount to Company If Company suspends service. Customer shall pay Company a service mterruption fee in an amount determmed by Company m its iscretion up to the maxmuan amownt allowed
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by Applxcable Law. Either party may terminate this Agreement upon 30 days prior written notice to the other party if the other party breaches a matenal obligation of the Agreement (inciuding non-payment) and fails to cure such breach within
10 days after recerving wntten notice of the breach. Company may termunate this Agreement for its convemence upon 30 days pnor written notce to Customer.

LIQUIDATED DAMAGES. If Customer termunates this Agreement before its expiration for any reason other than Company's breach (or if Company thus Agn due to C s nou-payment), Cu shall pay Company
BgoalSﬁuiﬁ!‘wﬂuE-Eoﬂ.ﬂo«.%S.?ru!&sagi@&ngaggﬂnnﬂa?gxggﬁlﬁﬁuﬁi&ﬁr.gg
Eeng.écngﬂmsﬂwsgn—nrg:_rur_n.g&nl&ﬂnﬁﬂﬁl&?ﬂigsnﬁ.ggggg-v&%KEEGEE
the circumstances. Amy amount payable under fus paragraph shall be m addition to amounts already owing under this Agreement

RIGHT OF FIRST REFUSAL. Customer agress to notify Company i wniting of any offer that Customer receives from any third party relating to the provision of any permanent or temporary collection. disposal or recycling services dunng
any term: of this Agreement ("Qffer”) and agrees to give Company the right of first refusal and reasonable oppornumuty to match such Otfer per to acceptance

COMMUNICATIONS. To ensure timely and accurate receipt of commumications. all commumications to Company regarding this Agr and'or the S must come directly from Customer Customer acknowledges that Company wall
not accept auy communicahons from any third parties acting as the Customer's agent or representative (absent proof of medical necessity as reasonably determuned by Conpany) All wnitten notices to Company pertaming to this Agreement
shall be sent prepaid certified or overmght mail. retum receipt requested. and must be reced d by Company. Any notce related to this Agreement will be deemed effective no less than 60 days from the cernfied mail retun receipt date

DISPUTE RESOLUTION-ARBITRATION; CLASS ACTION WAIVER. (a) Except for Excluded Claums (defined below), Customer and Company agree that any and all exisung or future controversy or clam between them ansing out of
or related to this Agr hether based in law or equity or allegmg any other legal theory. or arising prior to, in cornection with. or after the temunaton of this Agreement, shall be setied by wbitration admumstered by the

A Artemation A m dance with 1tz C: ial Arb Rules with a single arbitrator, and judgment on the awazd rendered by the arbitrator may be entered m any court having junsdicson thereof (b) Customer and
ng-ﬂnailignng.gikggs_&.n.!ﬂ.g.ng_x!mB.Eugngnagg.ngn!hﬁ.gg.gtEﬂg.s.x;a!on-n_uugons

ot rep baas or oth ggggg.ﬂﬁgongoﬁﬂgﬂg%&lngonng.ﬁﬁvaﬂglél (c) The following claims constitute
“Excluded Clamms" and are not subject to mandatory binding arbitration: (i) either party’s claims against the oher in connection with bodily injury or real property damage; (i) claims for mdemmuty pursuant to the Indemmfication Section of thus
Agreement: and (1) Company’s clams agamst Customer for collection or payment of Charges. damages (liquidated or oth or any other amoumts due or payable to Company by C under thas Agy

MISCELLANEQUS. (a) This Agreement shall be governed by and construed i accordance wath the itemal laws of the State where the Services are provided. without gnang effect to any conflict of law p (b) Thus Agr
g&ngggﬁngai}-:Eag.ggangggoﬂngﬁn}??ﬁwnﬂaﬂ (c) Except for Customer’s obligaton to pay amounts due to Company,
E.Eﬂg.svlgina%coi-Bgugvtgnngﬂﬁ?sgR?Sﬁgaggamsgﬂg.ﬁﬂﬂaaoﬁggg-g&
thus Agreement (d) Company shall have no confidentiality obligation with respect to any waste or recyclable matesials. (e) Company may assign thus Agreement without Customer's consent. This Agreemest shall be binding upon and mure
solely to the benefit of the parties and their permitted successors and assigns. (f) If any provision of this Azreement is declared mvalid or unenforceable, it shall be modified 50 a5 to be valid and enforceable but 50 a5 most nearly to retain the
Eo:rugm»ﬁggwggg.aiﬁggffﬁ&wsgi?%g?ﬁgEé.&?gﬂgﬁacnﬁmgggalﬂsﬁfgga
(g) Failure or delay by either party 1o enforce any provision of this Agreement will not be deemed a waiver of future enforcement of that or any other provision (i) If any Ling or arh 1 d under this Agr the
gn._13.Efnau&sgd.!&&gsgeﬁniﬁ.u?gg.iaﬂi!ﬂ;«.?gé.mﬂ.g.&!cgiig.ignﬁsﬂgagg
%iﬁaﬂo&ﬂ‘@nggniuﬂﬂgmﬂnﬂ-ng:ni&ggﬂi&lﬁaﬂnﬁﬁ.i&.&g)ﬂg%i&?gggﬁggRE:
were an onginal

The following Terms and Conditions apply to Customer cnly 1f Customer is recening the applicable Service from Company.

CONTAINER REFRESH. If the Services meclude Contaner Refresh. Castomer 15 limited to one (1) exchange of each parucipating contamer every 12 months of paid enrollent; any addtional exchange is subject to Company’s standard
contamer exchange fee. Customer agrees that during any enrollment year in which Customer recerves an exchange under the program. any request by Customer to cancel Contaner Refresh will not be effectve until Customer completes payment
for 12 consecutive months of enrollment m the program The Charge for Contamer Refresh will be itenuzed on Customer's uroice, which Charge may be changed by Company by showng the amoust of the new Charge on Customer's mvoice.
Company reserves the nght 1o suspend or cancel the Container Refresh program at auy tme.

RECYCLABLE MATERIAL. If the Services include recycling. Customer shall comply with all Applicable Laws regarding the separation of solid waste from Recyclable Matenal and not place items in any recycling contaier that may make
the Recyclable Matenal unsuitable for recycling or dacrease the value of the Recvelable Matenal. Customer agrees that Company in 1ts sole discretion may determine whether amv load of Recyciable Matenil is contamnated and may refuse to
collect 1t or may collect it but charge Customer for any additional costs. fees or surcharges associated with sorng. processme. contamunation. transportation, and'or disposal

wOFOm.-...gnlw.orlmni:R-EESRu-&éﬂgﬁuigﬂgzgguﬂgnv?gﬁmEggiwsﬁwgbn.gﬁ.:Vng.ﬂa_.ﬂéﬂriz.
tres, drums, paint. solvents, chemicals. or other such matenals that would be considered flammable or explosve, or other ls not p d to be disposed of ar the designated disposal facility. (b) If the roll-off is loaded with extremely
E@E&Gc_ﬁnngﬁ-ﬁﬁngﬂao?mg_.EEEZ!&&%HEZ&B&?E&REE%%?&ES&p.enﬁgnggzgiﬁgnsnsq&&na:.
off (d) Customer shall close and latch the back door of the roll-off before senace. The driver cannot load a roll-off with an open or mnlatched back door. (¢) If Company 15 unable to safely haul a roll-off. Customer shall off-load the

mp 1bl age or type of Js or otherwise improve any conditions necessary to enable safe hauling. Customer wall be charged a dry nm fee for each attempted mip where hauling does not ocaw (f) If Company hauls an overloaded
roll-off, Gy shall be responsible for all service charges based on the acrual tonnage hauled. plus any tickets, fines, penaltes or damag d by Republic due to the ight container

eighn

EQUIPMENT RENTAL. Rented equpment shall remain at Customer's Site Location at all imes, except when handled by Company. Customer chall not make any changes. alterstions, additions, or improvements i of to the equipment or
move or relocate the equipment without Company’s prior written consent. G shall allow Company and or its designee to enter the Site to examme of inspect the equpment. perfonu preventative mamtenance and repaws. or for any other
Evoﬁugis.g.»ﬂg.nguﬂﬂnﬁn?ég&_?%:??E.E_n—.ng."o_uﬁinﬁion.in!ﬂg&sﬁunmk.u!.ﬁxiaasrgsgﬁn
aquupment for similar equipment of make and size, or of a make and size that provides for more efficent or econonucal service
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MAINTENANCE. Company shall maintsm the equipment in good operating condition and make repairs necessitated ouly by normal wear and tear Customer shall be responsible for repawrs. replacement parss. and labor necessitated
S.ga%gagaiﬁgggggnnuggu&ng_om&n%QBE&EEW&_R»;FH des or interfe with the use of and
égrgglﬁggg&wigaggﬁg&ggng.!__BY%‘EE&E&«E&.!#«%B
i&n%lﬂqﬁ&ﬂgﬁsggs?iugE&nﬂgﬂﬂwi%%gg%gsg&aﬂﬁgﬂﬁﬁwgggﬁ

ggs.ngnﬂﬁg.sgnxgo??%ggf%ﬁnnﬂeggﬂisggﬁﬁﬂgggﬁg.nsa.unga-__
applicable bualding and zoning codes and regulations. (b) providing the y b .visinnlzﬂg.!lsEgggsgl.ﬂgga.ziggig.gi&
the equipmnent

CUSTOMER'S OBLIGATIONS. Customer shall operate the equipment solely for its intended purposs and in stnct confonmance with this Agreement. the manufacturer’s and Company's mstructons. and shall not allow the
equipment to be used by any person other than Customer's employees without Company’s writien consent. Customer shall compiy with all reporting and operating req related to the op mauntenace. and management of
the equipment as required by Compazy or as otherwise mandated by Applicable Laws Any Site-related licenses and permits conceming the equipment shall be obtamed and mamtained by Customer at Customer’s sole cost and
expense. Customer shall take all action necessary to ensure that the equipment 15 not abused. misused. ot otherwise harmed by Customer or 1ts employees. agents. and representatives of any other persons. Customer shall mumediately

gg.&agB?iﬂaggaﬁiﬂgaﬁg gzigﬁwﬂgg and all hens and claums and shall not do or penmt amry act whereby
Company’s tite or nghts nnght be encumbered or impaired.

DISCLAIMER OF WARRANTIES; DAMAGES. COMPANY MAKES NO WARRANTIES, EITHER EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, AS TO ANY MATTER. WHATSOEVER. INCLUDING. WITHOUT LIMITATION, THE
CONDITION OF THE EQUIPMENT, ITS MERCHANTABILITY OR ITS FITNESS FOR. ANY PARTICULAR PURPOSE, AND COMPANY HEREBY EXPRESSLY DISCLADMS ALL WARRANTIES THEREFOR. COMPANY
EXPRESSLY DISCLADMS ALL INCIDENTAL. CONSEQUENTIAL, PUNITIVE, OR. EXEMPLARY DAMAGES ARISING IN CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT OR THE EQUIPMENT. INCLUDING. WITHOUT
LIMITATION, LOST SALES AND PROFITS AND OTHER BUSINESS INTERRUPTION DAMAGES. EVEN IF COMPANY HAS BEEN ADVISED OF THE POSSIBILITY OF SUCH DAMAGES AND WITHOUT REGARD
TO THE NATURE OF THE CLADM OR TEE UNDERLYING THEORY OR. CAUSE OF ACTION (WHETHER. IN CONTRACT. TORT, OR OTHERWISE). AND CUSTOMER HEREBY EXPRESSLY WAIVES AND RELEASES
COMPANY FROM AND AGAINST ANY SUCE DAMAGES

ELECTRONIC MATERIAL AND'OR BULB & BATTERY (UNIVERSAL) RECYCLING SERVICES. Electronsc Material Services and'or Bulb & Battery (Universal) Recycling Senvices are provided only wathun the contmenal United
States (not available m Alaska or Hawaw). C or its sub shall collect. transp or recerve via mail. reat, recycle, andor dispose of Electrome Matenal and or Bulbs & Battenes as provided m the Service Detnls. Customer

acknowledges and understands that due to  variety of fictors, inchuding without limatation market conditions and processing costs, some or all of the Electromc Matenal and Bulbs & Batteries may be disposed of m a disposal factlity and not
recycled Weights and/or wt counts of all Elec Material and Bulbs & Batteries shall be determined upon recerpt by Company or its sub All refe to "Company” mn this section of the Ageement shall also nclude Company's
subcontractor(s).
ADDITIONAL DEFINTTIONS. The following additional definitions apply to Electromic Material Services and Bulb & Battery Recycling Services only-
E.ggﬁﬂgngggigginﬂﬁnggiaggﬂgngqnﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁidﬁds_f
dengnated processing facility

“Bulbs & Battenes™ means those matenals mcluded m the E nmental Pr Agency’s U | Waste regul set forth m 40 C FR_ 273, meluding bulbs. battenes. TSCA-exempt ballasts and non-PCB ballasts.

“Bulb & Barery Recyclng Services” mcludes Box Mail-Back Services as a means to recycle or dispose of Bulbs & Battenes.

..UREB.E..E&!.—.IG’?EQ‘Hmﬂ&gg,?ﬁa&u.ﬁaﬂaicmsggﬂ_gmsgwwiﬁ_ Senvices Electromc Material does not include any solid waste.
non-electron
Recyclable Matenal or Excluded Waste.

“Electromic Material Sevices” includes Box Mail-Back. Pack-Up and Pick-Up and'or Full Service 25 3 means to recycle or dispose of Elecromc Matenal.

gf.gg.égggvgﬂgkg.ggggn?iﬁﬂ.if%Rggvrgsn%&&gkwsg&:
Bulb & Battery Recycling Service. the Electromic Material will be treated 25 Exciuded Waste. and vice versa.

“Full Service” means senvices m which Company provides all ¥ packagng. 1. loading and shipping of the Electromsc Matenal to the desimated processing facility.
E-gggggnlﬁ%gﬁgaEESEES.g%% lephones (cellul dl less), and telephone camer hung
equipment

“Low Grade™ means electromc items that consist mostly of plastic and metal inciuding. but not Luted to. prnters. keyboardsmice. countertop apphiances with cords. media storage devices. and video games and accessanes.

“Pack Up & Pick Up Services” means services in which pre-packaged or palletized Electronic Material are collected by Company from  Site Location and ransported durectly to the desigated processing facality
""\ideo Display Device” means comp 1 oscilloscope. TV (CRT. LCD. plasma. rear projection), IT equipment, E-waste containing glass. momitor (CRT. LCD. plasma). and tablets
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BOX MAIL-BACK SERVICES. In cormection wath Box Mail-Back Services, the followmg additonal terms shall apply:

Pre-Payment; No Refunds. With respect to Eleczromc Maternal. paymens for Sox Matl-Back guiﬂ&«!ﬂgnggﬂgggéﬁﬁﬁ:&&!sﬁ&nﬁ‘u&
pace. If Customer subsequently requests a Box for El Matenal. Cu will be responsible for full pre-payment With respect to Bulbs & Bactenies, payment for Box Mail-Back Services 1s made in advance and will
1ot be refunded afier a Box has been shupped to Customer. If Customer returns an unused Box. Customer will be responsible for its shupping cost o refum the Box plus a restocking fee. which is $14 for a lamp box and $12 for
a battery ballast box (restocking fees for other types of Boxes may vary) If Customer subsequently decides they requare a Box. Customer wall be responsible for the cost of re-chuppmg the Box.

Expiration of Boxes, Each Box must be received by Company or its subcontractor by the expiration date printed on the prepaid retiun shipping label. which 12 typically twelve (12) maonths (the "Expinition Date”). If
Qusgg-wﬂ&igvrﬁlﬂziﬁEggﬁgiB-B?Vgggnnmﬂ-g?.ﬂggxng.ﬁgfﬂ&ns&moj.&ﬁu
ongmal Box purchase pnice Company has 5o obligation after the Expiration Date (oniginal or extended. if applicable) to process matenials sent in for recycling and may retum such matenals to Customer at Customer’s
expense

Safe Packaging Obligation. ga%?ijlﬁéggaﬁgignﬁxﬁy%giggaoﬂwg

Electronic Material Specifications. With respect to Electromic Material Box Mail-Back Services, Company reserves the ngiit to bill additonal amownts for any of the following. (i) any Box ding 15 specified maanmum

%lﬁngﬁisg.ﬂvﬂiggg-raﬁ!ﬂmwﬂﬁlﬂ.ﬁg&!-wﬂﬁﬁufﬂggggrgrgﬂgiaSu;ni

ﬁl‘oﬂlﬁgigiisuouwsi‘ (v) additonal shippmg charges beyond the amounts prepaid for any prepaid label: and/or (v1) retumn shipping charges for any Excluded Waste or Boxes
wath expired

Bulbs & Batteries Specifications. With respect to Bulb & Battery Recycling Box Mail-Back Services, Company reserves the nght to bull additonal amounts for any of the following (1) any Box ding 1ts specified
E:ﬁ.m!ian-uounval.Qvig—aBal!.ﬂmwﬁﬂgiwB-woﬁgﬁ.iiﬂrslggrvﬂvagﬂgié&bgf
&cagﬁnginﬂ!qiii!nclagEﬁuﬁ;mﬂ!’.ggﬂwﬁﬂvgl&gggﬂnfﬁoﬂ!ﬂﬁ

Automatic Reordering. For automatic reordermg of Box Mail-Back Services, the following provisions wall appiy

Upon recespt of 2 Box from Customer. Company will automatcally send G a Box u | to the one d by O Any Box must be used by Customer within rwelve (12) months of receipt or an

Company may increase rates to cover increases m shipping, recycling. refrbishment. reuse. and/or disposal rates upon notice to Customer

Customer shall have 30 days following the expiration or fermination of the Electronic Material Services or Bulb & Battery Recycling Services. a5 apphicable. to use and return al of the Boxes in Customer’s
aon. C the nght to ball Customer for any Boxes not received by Company within 30 days foll the or termenation of the El Matens! Services or Bulb & Battery

e ¥

PACK-UP & PICK UP SERVICES. In connection with Pack Up & Pick Up Services. the following additional terms shall apply

Safe Packaging Obligation. C 13 responsible for complying with all safety, packaging, sealing. and loading pallenzing jons (ncludmg removing Is from their ongmnal packaging and or not ndividually
i&gaiagiﬂuznﬂﬂg:4.;@3?#[.1@5&:

Electronic Material Specifications. With respect to Electronic Matenal Pack-Up and Pick-Up Services. Customer shall ensure that Electromic Material is sortad into the following categones: (1) Video Display Devices; (2)
High Grade; (3) Low Grade A full list of Video Display Devices. High Grade and Low Grade Electromic Matenal 15 available upon request. If the El Matenal 15 not properly sorted. Ct shall pay Company a
gs&aasuuvﬂgﬁﬂgvgl«uo.g&mo!:amll.tn_nmﬁm‘!&&aoﬂ_.nilrnavnn_&ng&ésﬁﬁ;ﬂvuﬁn!&i. If Electrome Materal are not
propezly loaded and palletized. an addinonal unsafe load conditions fee i the amount of up to $0.37 per pound wall apply.

FULL SERVICE. There is 2 mininnum charge for Full Service. For loads of Electronic Matenal up to 466 pounds, the munumun charge for Full Service will be $660. For loads of Electromic Matenal over 466 pounds, the charge for
Full Service will the weight of the load multiplied by the per pound charge quoted mn the Service Details.

CUSTOMER'S INITIAL: DATE:
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RBM Memo

Friday, June 11, 2021 10:33 AM
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Karyn Douglas
Montgomery Circuit, Superior, &
County Court Clerk

100 E Main Street P. O. Box 768 ®  Crawfordsville, IN 47933 * (765) 364-6430  Fax (765) 364-6355

To: Montgomery County Commissioners

May 27, 2021

This memo is to let you know that | am asking for approval to spend budgeted money to
purchase additional election equipment. This money has already been approved in my
2021 budget. Legislative changes have been approved to change some of the process
for voting. These additional machines are capable of handling the new changes resulting
in a savings of future personal and supplies.

Sincerely,

Karyn D Douglas
Montgomery County Clerk
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Your full-service
Election services provider

Dan McGinnis
R BM (312)9520913

CONSULTING www.gorbm.com

April 28, 2021
Karyn Douglas
Montgomery County Clerk

100 E. Main St.
Crawfordsville, In. 47933

Dear Karyn,

Per your request RBM is providing a quote for addition of the FreedomVote unit.

The quote is for thirteen (13) units at $3,050.00 each for a total hardware and firmware
Price of $39,650.00. Also one service day for installation and testing at $1,550.

Total Price is $41,200.

Shipping will be billed at actual

Sincerely and we do appreciate your business!!

Dan Mc Ginnis, President

RBM Consulting
312-952-0913
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RBM Consulting - Election Equipment

Friday, June 11, 2021 10:28 AM
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PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT
Hardware and Software Purchase

THIS PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT (the “Agreement”) made on June
14, 2021 is entered into between RBM Consulting, LLC (“RBM”) and Montgomery County,
Indiana (“Client) concerning the provision of services (“Services”) by RBM to CLIENT.

WHEREAS, CLIENT wishes to retain RBM to provide services in support of Election

Equipment and Processes necessary to conduct Elections.
NOW, THEREFORE, the parties agree as follows:

1. PERFORMANCE OF SERVICES. The Services to be provided by RBM shall be set
forth in one or more written Statements of Work (“SOWSs”) as agreed to by the parties (which
SOWs shall be included by reference as part of this Agreement using the attached as Exhibits A,
B & C). The SOW shall specify the Services to be provided, estimated charges based upon the
anticipated level and extent of Services to be provided and an approximate time schedule for
completion.

2. COMPENSATION FOR SERVICES. CLIENT shall provide compensation to RBM
for the Services at the billing rates or fixed price agreed to in a SOW. Billing rates set forth in
any SOW agreed to by the parties are firm and may not be changed unless agreed to in writing
by both parties.

3. TRAVEL AND OTHER EXPENSES. Travel Expenses for all pre-approved,
reasonable travel, per diem and other expenses incurred by RBM, its officers, employees, agents
and contractors in connection with performance of the Services are included in the attached
SOWs, unless additional services are requested by CLIENT and agreed to by both Parties.

4. INVOICE AND PAYMENTS. RBM shall submit an Invoice to CLIENT in January of
each contract year for services, ballots and supply items (unless otherwise specified in an SOW)
which shall include all SOWS to be performed during that year.

CLIENT shall pay RBM’s invoice within sixty (60) days of CLIENT’S receipt of invoice.

5. TERM. This Agreement will commence on the date of execution by both parties of this
Agreement and will continue to December 31, 2022.

6. RELATIONSHIP OF RBM’S EMPLOYEES TO CLIENT. RBM’s employees,

contractors and agents performing the Services shall remain RBM’s employees, contractors or

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 1
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agents and shall not be deemed employees, contractors or agents of CLIENT. RBM shall have
the right to control and direct the Services, including the right to discharge or reassign any RBM
employee providing Services hereunder.

7. NON-DIVERSION OF EMPLOYEES. The parties hereby agree not to offer to or
accept employment of the other party’s employees or contractors or agents who provide Services
during the term of this Agreement and for a period of one (1) year subsequent to the completion
of the Agreement or without obtaining the consent of the other party.

8. LIMITED WARRANTY; MANUFACTURER’S WARRANTY. RBM WARRANTS
THAT IT WILL PERFORM THE SERVICES IN A PROFESSIONAL AND WORKMANLIKE
MANNER. RBM MAKES NO OTHER WARRANTIES, EXPRESS OR IMPLIED,
INCLUDING  WITHOUT  LIMITATION, ANY  WARRANTY  CONCERNING
MERCHANTABILITY OR FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. RBM SHALL IN
NO EVENT BE LIABLE FOR ANY SPECIAL, CONSEQUENTIAL, EXEMPLARY OR
INCIDENTAL DAMAGES INCLUDING, WITHOUT LIMITATION, LOSS OF PROFIT OR
GOODWILL, SUFFERED BY CLIENT OR CLIENT’S CUSTOMERS. IN THE EVENT RBM
SHALL BE LIABLE TO CLIENT FOR ANY MATTER RELATING TO OR ARISING IN
CONNECTION WITH THIS AGREEMENT, WHETHER BASED ON AN ACTION OR CLAIM
IN CONTRACT, EQUITY, NEGLIGENCE, INTENDED CONDUCT, TORT OR OTHERWISE,
THE AMOUNT OF DAMAGES RECOVERABLE AGAINST RBM FOR RBM EVENTS, ACTS
OR OMISSIONS SHALL NOT EXCEED IN THE AGGREGATE THE AMOUNT ACTUALLY
PAID BY CLIENT FOR RBM SERVICES DURING THE IMMEDIATELY PRECEDING SIX
(6) MONTHS.

RBM WARRANTS ITS WORKMANSHIP ONLY AND DOES NOT WARRANT ANY OF
THE SOFTWARE, HARDWARE OR OTHER INCIDENTALS ASSOCIATED WITH THE
SAME. ALL SOFTWARE, HARDWARE AND OTHER ITEMS HAVE INDEPENDENT
WARRANTIES, IF ANY, THAT CLIENT WILL RECEIVE OR BE ABLE TO NEGOTIATE
WITH SUCH MANUFACTURER. RBM WILL USE ITS BEST EFFORTS TO ASSIST
CLIENT IN THIS ENDEAVOR.

9. CLIENT RESPONSIBILITIES. CLIENT will assist in the timely implementation and
success of RBM by providing that support specified in the SOW. This shall include, without
limitation, the designation of the contact person to whom RBM shall report. For purposes of this
Agreement, the designated contact persons shall be the County Election Board.

10. CONFIDENTIAL AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION. Each party
acknowledges and agrees that any and all information concerning the specifics of the other
party’s business operations, and the contents of all Deliverables, as defined in any SOW, are
“Confidential and Proprietary Information”. Each party agrees that it will not permit the use or
disclosure of any such Confidential and Proprietary Information to any person (other than its

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 2
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own employees, agents or representatives who must have such information for the performance
of its obligations hereunder), unless such duplication, use or disclosure is specifically authorized
in writing by the other party. “Confidential and Proprietary Information” is not meant to include
any information which, at the time of disclosure, is generally known by the public. RBM may
identify CLIENT as a customer, but any media releases related to this Agreement must be
approved in advance by both parties.

The parties acknowledge that the release of any confidential and proprietary information without
the prior written consent of the other party is an action for which damages cannot be readily
assessed. Accordingly, the parties agree that, in the event any confidential or proprietary
information is released without prior written authorization, the party whose information has been
released without its consent may obtain, among other things, equitable relief prohibiting any
further dissemination or use of that confidential and proprietary information. Any such
restraining order shall be in addition to all of the rights a party may normally have under this
Agreement, or any other statutory or common law rights afforded to it. This section shall survive
any termination of this Agreement. No Confidential and Proprietary Information may be
released unless agreed to, in writing, by both parties.

11. INDEMNIFICATION. Each party will defend, indemnify and hold the other party, its
officers, directors, agents and employees, harmless from any claims or liabilities brought against
it or its licensors, including attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses at trial, on appeal or on any
petition for review, based on any claim that any work or materials delivered to the party pursuant
to this Agreement violate or infringe upon the intellectual property rights of any other party or a
breach of the delivering party’s contractual obligations hereunder; provided, however, this
subsection shall not apply where such injury or damage is caused by the negligence or willful
misconduct of the party claiming indemnification, or that party’s agents or employees. Nor shall
any indemnification or liability exceed the limits set forth under Section 8 of this Agreement.

12. TAXES. CLIENT shall pay all taxes that are applicable for payments made under this
Agreement, including, without limitation, sales, use, excise or value-added tax. If the CLIENT is
tax exempt the tax exemption number will be provided.

13. GOVERNING LAW. This Agreement is governed by and is to be construed and
interpreted in accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana, without giving effect to the
conflict of law principles thereof. Any proceeding pertaining to this action shall be venued in the
Montgomery County Courts.

14. FORCE MAJEURE. In the event that either party is unable to perform any of its
obligations under the Agreement or to enjoy any of its benefits because of, or if loss of the
product is caused by, natural disaster, actions or decrees of governmental bodies or
communications line failures not the fault of the affected party (“Force Majeure Event”), the
party who has been so affected immediately shall give notice to the other party and shall do

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 3
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everything possible to resume performance. In the event, the ongoing Force Majeure will
adversely affect either party’s obligations under this Agreement the other party may terminate
this Agreement.

15. NOTICES. Any notice required or permitted to be given under this Agreement shall be
personally delivered or sent by registered or certified first class U.S. Mail, return receipt
requested, or by a recognized overnight courier service, by hand delivery, or by confirmed
facsimile transmission and shall be deemed given upon receipt. All such notices shall be
delivered to the parties as follows:

If to RBM Consulting, LLC: If to Client:

Dan Mc Ginnis, President Montgomery County Election Board
6330 E. 75™ St. Suite 166 100 E. Main St.

Indianapolis, In. 46250 Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933

16. PARTIES BOUND. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of
the parties hereto and their respective heirs, executors, administrators, legal representatives,
successors and assigns.

17. LEGAL CONSTRUCTION. If any provision hereof shall be declared invalid, such
provisions shall be deemed severable from the remaining provisions of the Agreement, which
shall remain in full force and effect.

18. MODIFICATION, SUCCESSORS AND ASSIGNS, ETC. No amendment hereof
shall be effective unless contained in a written instrument signed by the parties hereto.

19. ASSIGNMENT. Neither party may assign or transfer its rights or obligations under
this Agreement (except to its successor pursuant to a merger, consolidation or sale of all or
substantially all of its assets) without obtaining the prior written consent of the other party.

20. ENTIRE AGREEMENT. This Agreement, together with any SOWs executed as a
result hereof and any other Exhibits attached hereto, constitutes the entire Agreement and
understanding between RBM and CLIENT and supersedes all prior oral or written proposals,
discussions, representations and negotiations between RBM and CLIENT as they pertain to the
Services, except as provided below. This Agreement may not be changed, except by written
amendment signed by authorized representatives of both parties.

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 4
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21. CONFLICT AND INCORPORATION. To the extent any conflict exists with respect
to the specific subject matter of this Agreement and the Prior Agreement, the terms of this
Agreement shall govern.

Client RBM Consulting, LL.C
Montgomery County Election Board Dan Mc Ginnis, President
100 E. Main St. 6330 E. 75" St. Suite 166
Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933 Indianapolis, In. 46250
Date: Date:

I —————
RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 5
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EXHIBIT A

STATEMENT OF WORK

This Statement of Work (SOW) references and is incorporated within the Professional Services
Agreement dated --------- , 2021 and terminating on December 31, 2022 between RBM

Consulting, LLC (RBM) and Montgomery County, IN (Client).

SERVICES TO BE PROVIDED

DESCRIPTION

Two elections

BALLOT LAYOUT AND PROOF 6 days $9,300.

ELECTION CODING 6 days 9,300.

VOICE FILES - Included

BALLOTS- 6,000 8.5x14” printed 6,900.

300 OVI-FVT PAPER ROLLS

ELECTION DAY SUPPORT (Three DAYS PER PERSON) 6 days 9,300.

HARDWARE TEST 2 days 3,100.

PROJECT MANAGEMENT 8 days 12,400.

PRECINCT TRAINING-OVO/OVI 0 days 0

E-Poll Book Training and election support

CONFIGURATION/TEST OF CENTRAL ACCUMULATION 2 days 3,100.

HARDWARE

HARDWARE MAINTENANCE 8-0VO; 50 OVI; 12 FVT 11,760.

1 MINI OVCS

*FIRMWARE LICENSE 4,940.

*SOFTWARE LICENSE 5,600.
TOTAL $75,700.

Any additional service days will be billed at $1,550. per day

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 6
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ELECTION SUPPORT SERVICES

Election Support Services to be provided by RBM, a description of services are described below.

Project Manager: A Project Manager mutually agreed upon by the County and RBM will be
assigned full Election Planning for all Elections from beginning of contract until final expiration
date. All day-to-day functions of the Election cycle, Scope of Work and Business Plan, along
with the daily communications with the County are the responsibility of the Project Manager.
Listed are Election Services to be performed on-site with the direction of the Project Manager.
All pricing days are listed in Exhibit C in reference to the Project Manager.

Software: The County will be responsible for all software modules required to implement a
countywide election. RBM’s Project Manager will be responsible for Ballot Layout, Ballot
Coding and Election Night Reporting by utilizing the following modules for each election.

Tabulator Client
Tabulator Reports
Election Tabulator

I ——————
RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 7
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EXHIBIT B

HARDWARE MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT

This Maintenance Agreement (the “Agreement”) is made by and between RBM Consulting, LLC
(“RBM”) and Montgomery County, IN (the “Client”). This Agreement shall be effective as of
January 1, 2022 and terminate on December 31, 2022.

RECITALS

A. Client owns and utilizes certain election equipment and machines associated
with local, state and federal elections (the “Election Equipment”):

Qty. Model Unit Price Extended Price
8§ | OVO $165. $1,320.
50 | OVI-Vote Center-ADA voters $165. $8,250.
12 | FREDDOMVOTE (FVT) $100. $1,200.
1 | MINIOVCS $990. $990.
Total: $11,760.
B. RBM, among other things, has the expertise and the know how to maintain

the Election Equipment.

C. Client, pursuant to the terms of this Agreement, hereby agrees to retain RBM
to maintain its Election Equipment.

1. Maintenance. Pursuant to the terms and conditions set forth herein, Client hereby retains
RBM to maintain its Election Equipment. The scope of the maintenance shall include
Annual Preventive Maintenance, general cleaning and routine maintenance, all necessary
parts, labor and service, Post Election Maintenance and, to the extent necessary, repair of the
Election Equipment. The maintenance under this Agreement shall not include replacement
of ballot boxes, software or any other type of operating system utilized with the Election
Equipment.

2. Limited Warranty. RBM shall, under this Agreement, install or replace the parts provided
that its doing so will not impact any factory or manufacturer’s warranty. Consumable parts
(such as ribbons, batteries, roll-paper, ballots or other supplies are not provided under this
agreement.

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 8
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Under this Agreement, RBM is offering only a limited warranty relative to its work in
maintaining the Election Equipment. Specifically, RBM limits its warranty to the
maintenance of the Election Equipment and that the same shall be maintained in a good and
workmanlike manner. RBM does not warrant the Election Equipment itself. RBM does not
warrant any software or other operating systems that are used in coordination with the
Election Equipment. Under no circumstances shall RBM be responsible for any damages
that exceed the amounts paid to it under the Agreement in one calendar year, regardless of
the nature of the claims or causes of action.

Responsibilities of Client. Client shall provide RBM complete and convenient access in an
adequate working space to all Election Equipment covered under this Agreement. Client will
also allow RBM timely access to the Election Equipment so that the Election Equipment may
be properly maintained. If this agreement is for Depot Service, Customer shall be
responsible for all costs of shipping, (including Insurance), to and from the RBM
maintenance facility. Customer shall bear all risk of damage or loss to the unit (units) during
shipment.

Responsibilities of RBM. RBM shall provide one preventive maintenance inspection for
each twelve months of the agreement. RBM shall inspect and maintain the Election
Equipment and shall provide Client with a report of any deficiencies, including parts that
need to be ordered and replaced. RBM shall not be responsible for determining the amount of
supplies (such as ribbons, batteries, roll-paper, ballots or other supplies). That determination
is and shall be subject to a separate agreement, if any.

Excluded Services. RBM reserves the right to decline service to any unit (units) determined
to be un-repairable to a maintainable condition. Support services not specified in this
contract may be requested in writing. Field support not included in this contract is billable at
$1,550.00/day including expenses.

Payment; Termination; Term. Payment is due, in total, within 60 days of RBMs Invoice to
Client. The Hardware Maintenance Agreement may be terminated by either party upon sixty
(60) days written notice. In the event of termination before the expiration of the current term,
annual fees are not refundable.

The term of this Agreement shall be from January 1, 2022 to December 31, 2022. This
Agreement shall automatically renew each and every year without notice subject to the
termination provision set forth herein.

Governing Laws; Entire Agreement. This Agreement shall be governed by the laws of
Indiana. This Agreement contains the entire agreement between the parties and may not be
amended except in writing and executed by both parties.

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 9
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8. Assignment. This Agreement may not be assigned by either party except with a written
consent of the non-assigning party. Such consent shall not be unreasonably withheld.
Notwithstanding anything contrary, RBM may arrange for subcontractors to perform the
maintenance and repair work contemplated by this Agreement.

RBM Consulting, LLC Montgomery County Commissioners
6330 E. 75" Street Suite 166 100 E. MAIN ST.
Indianapolis, In 46250 CRAWFORDSVILLE, INDIANA 47933
Dan Mc Ginnis John E. Frey, President
Montgomery County Board of
By: Commissioners
Its: President
Dated: Dated:
RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 10
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EXHIBIT C
HARDWARE PURCHASE AGREEMENT

This agreement (herein referred to as “Agreement”), dated ----------- , (“Effective Date™) is
MADE BY AND between RBM CONSULTING LLC (“RBM”) and MONTGOMERY County
Indiana Election Board (herein referred to as “Customer”™) for an OpenElect voting system and
services. The OpenElect Voting Hardware is manufactured by UNISYN Voting Solutions, Inc.
(Supplier).

1. Purpose of Contract

The purpose of this Contract is for RBM to supply voter tabulation Hardware Products and
related services for Customer. The Voting Hardware and services to be supplied and the prices
to be paid are as listed in Schedule 1.

2. Payment

For the total Purchase price as set forth in Schedule 1, RBM agrees to sell and Customer agrees
to purchase the Deliverables as described in Schedule 1.

With respect to invoices not paid when due, Customer shall pay interest at the lesser of a rate of
1.5% per month or the highest rate permitted by law. Customer shall additionally pay any
collection costs or fees associated with the efforts of Supplier to collect past due amounts,
including but not limited to attorneys’ fees.

3. Return of Defective Items
3.1  Right of Return of Defective Items

Prior to completion of the thirty (30) day period of Acceptance Testing as set forth in Section 4.
Customer may return items that are defective and not in conformance with Supplier’s
specifications. After Acceptance Testing, and except for defective items covered by the
Supplier’s warranty herein, all goods and items delivered are not subject to any additional rights
of return. All goods shall be accepted within thirty (30) days. Any defects or deficiencies
discovered after acceptance shall be repaired or replaced under Supplier’s warranty set forth
herein.

4. Acceptance Testing
Testing of each piece or component of the Hardware Products shall be performed by Supplier at

the manufacturer’s facility prior to delivery of the Hardware Products to ensure that it is in good
working order and complies with the terms of this Contract.

RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 11
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Should Customer so desire, Customer may conduct Acceptance Testing on the goods when
received. The Acceptance Testing process assures that the system operates according to the
supplied OpenElect system documentation. Testing begins when RBM notifies Customer that
Hardware Products have been delivered. The Customer will have up to thirty (30) calendar days
to complete its testing and accept the delivered products.

The Product deliverable will be deemed acceptable upon notification to RBM by the Customer or
within 30 calendar days after receipt of products defined for the payment milestone at customer
site, whichever is earlier.

5. Title and Risk of Loss

5.1 Risk of loss or damage in respect of the Hardware Products shall pass to Customer upon
shipment by Supplier of each item of Hardware Products from Supplier’s facilities.
Except as set forth herein, title and ownership to the Hardware Products shall pass to
Customer upon payment in full of the Total Purchase Price for each item as set out in
Schedule 1.

5.2 Customer agrees that until title and ownership passes to it:

A. the Hardware Products are and shall remain RBM’s personal property and shall not
be attached to or become part of any realty;

B. the Hardware Products shall be installed and used and shall not be removed from
Customer’s place of business without the prior written consent of RBM; and

C. Customer shall not sell, pledge, mortgage, assign, transfer, lease, sublet, loan,
license, part with possession of, or encumber the Deliverables or any part thereof or
permit or suffer or attempt to do any of the acts aforesaid without the prior written
consent of RBM.

53 Prior to payment in full of the Total Purchase Price as specified in Schedule 1,
Customer:

A. Will comply with all laws relating in any way to the use, operation or maintenance
of the Deliverables;

B. Will provide proof of adequate insurance to cover the loss of Hardware Products
during the period of installation prior to final payment;

C. Will grant RBM the right to inspect the Deliverables at any reasonable time upon
due notice; and
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D. Shall not make any altercations, additions, modifications or improvements to the
Hardware Products without the prior written consent of RBM.

5.4  Upon full payment of the Total Purchase Price as specified in Schedule 1, RBM shall
deliver title to the Hardware Products to Customer free and clear of all liens and
encumbrances of any kind or description.

6. Shipping and Receiving, Freight and Insurance

Hardware Products will be delivered Free Carrier (FCA) (according to Incoterms 2010)
Supplier’s facility in Vista, California, U.S.A. Customer may elect to provide transportation and
shipping insurance by providing specific written notice to Supplier of its intent to do so,
otherwise, Supplier shall arrange for shipping and insurance. Customer will be responsible for
transportation charges and for insurance on Supplier’s Hardware Products at rates in effect at the
time of this Agreement if the same is arranged by Supplier.

7. Warranty

All Hardware Products when delivered are warranted to be free from manufacturing defects and
conform to documentation and specifications published by Supplier. Should any Hardware
Products fail to conform to the preceding warranty during the initial twelve (12) months
commencing from the date of completion of out-of-box testing. Supplier shall repair or replace
any item determined by Supplier to be nonconforming after delivery of the item by Customer to
Supplier’s facility in Vista, California. Customer shall comply with Supplier’s published
policies regarding submittal of items for warranty and repair services. Such published policies
are available upon request.

OpenElect product hardware warranty services are provided by Supplier’s repair center in Vista,
California, USA.

THE WARRANTIES CONTAINED IN THIS SECTION ARE IN LIEU OF ALL OTHER
WARRANTIES AND CONDITIONS EXPRESS OR IMPLIED, INCLUDING BUT NOT
LIMITED TO EXPRESS OR IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF MERCHANTABLILTY
AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE. THE IMPLIED WARRANTIES OF
MERCHANTABILITY AND FITNESS FOR A PARTICULAR PURPOSE ARE
EXPRESSLY DISCLAIMED AND EXCLUDED.
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8. Signatures

Each party has full power and authority to enter into and perform this Agreement, and the person
signing this Agreement on behalf of each party has been properly authorized and empowered to
enter into this Agreement. Each party acknowledges it has read this Agreement, understands,
and agrees to be bound by it.

MONTGOMERY COUNTY, ELECTION BOARD RBM CONSULTING, LLC

Signed Signed
Printed Name Printed Name
Title Title

Customer Address:
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, INDIANA

100 E. MAIN STREET
CRAWFORDSVILLE, INDIANA 47933

I ——————
RBM Professional Service Agreement Page 14
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RBM

NSULTING

Schedule 1
Pricing and Contract Deliverables
1.1 HARDWARE/SOFTWARE PRODUCTS
This Schedule specifies the Hardware/Software Products to be delivered under this
Agreement.
DESCRIPTION QTY | PRICE TOTAL
FREEDOMVOTE UNIT WITHADA KEY PAD AND 13 $3,050. | $39,650.
FIRMWARE
INSTALLATION AND ACCEPTANCE TEST 1 1,550. $1,550.
DAY
TOTAL $41,200.

*PRICE INCLUDES A ONE YEAR WARRANTY FOR HARDWARE AND FIRMWARE. SHIPPING COST
WILL BE INVOICED AT ACTUAL COST.

Page 15

RBM Professional Service Agreement
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Letter of Understanding - SR25

Friday, June 11, 2021 1:13 PM
Establishes unofficial local detour due to the closure of State Road 25 over Coal Creek for a bridge deck

overlay. The State will reimburse the County for expenses to repairing the local roads on the unofficial
local detour due to damage caused by the detour traffic. The estimated cost is $4,924.
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INDIANA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION

Driving Indiana’'s Economic Growth

Crawfordsville District PHONE: (765) 362-3700 Eric Holcomb, Governor

41W 300 N FAX: (765) 361-5265 Joe McGuinness, Commissioner
Crawfordsville, IN 47933

May 26, 2021

Montgomery County
Attn: Jim Peck

818 N. Whitlock Ave
Crawfordsville, IN 47933

Re: Letter of Understanding
Unofficial Local Detour
Location: SR 25
Des. # 1900756, Contract B-38761

Dear: Montgomery County Officials

It will be necessary to close SR 25 for the DES: 1900756 — Bridge Deck Overlay, On SR 25, Over Br N
Fork Coal Creek, 1.64 mi N of SR 55 as part of the above referenced Contract. INDOT and /or one of its
agents will be responsible for setting and maintaining the official detour. This project is expected to begin
construction May 25, 2021.

The mutually acceptable unofficial local detour for SR 25 is on 1125 N — 950 W as shown on the
attached map. The Unofficial Local Detour will be in effect during the same period as the Official Detour. The
Unofficial Local Detour will not be signed as a detour. The local agency will be responsible for any additionally
desired signing (i.e. weight restrictions, trail blazing, & etc.)

INDOT will set up and maintain the necessary traffic control for the official detour route or arrange with
others to furnish the necessary items. Montgomery County will be responsible for signing any weight
restrictions on the Unofficial Detour.

Pursuant to IC 8-23-21, INDOT agrees to reimburse Montgomery County for the cost related to damage
repair on 1125 N — 950 W as while it is being used as the unofficial local detour. All reimbursable work must be
approved by INDOT before the initiation of any repair work. Once the District has agreed to the documented
expenses for the repairs and the detour has been eliminated, INDOT and Montgomery County must execute
an agreement that indicates the documented expenses.

www.in.gov/dot/
An Equal Opportunity Employer
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If the terms of this letter are acceptable to you. | would appreciate your concurrence as soon as
possible. Please sign and return this letter to the following address:

INDOT

Arshad Ahmed

41 W 300N
Crawfordsville, IN 47933

Respectfully,

4Kohl f

Capital Program Management Director
INDOT Crawfordsville District

County Commissioner

By: Date:
Name

By: Date:
Name

By: Date:
Name

Enclosure

TK/JC

Cc: Arshad Ahmed PM
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Salt Barn: Award & Notice to Proceed

Friday, June 11, 2021 8:33 AM
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MdNTGOERY COUN TY ENGINEER

110 West South Boulevard Commissioners
Crawfordsville, IN 47933 John Frey, President

Office: (765) 361-2623 Jim Fulwider, Vice President
Fax: (765) 361-3238 Dan Guard, Member

Email: james.peck@montgomerycounty.in.gov County Engineer

Website: www.montgomerycounty.in.gov James (Jim) Peck, PE

June 11, 2021

Re: Recommendation to award contract to Greystone Construction Co., - Highway Department Salt Barn
Commissioners,

On April 26th the Montgomery County Commissioners received two bids for Highway Department Salt Barn. The bids
were opened and read out loud on the May 24" at the Montgomery County Commissioner’s meeting. The apparent low

bid for Salt Barn was Greystone Construction Company in the amount of $196,890.

I have reviewed the bids and recommend the Commissioners award the Salt Barn project to Greystone Construction
Company subject to the following condition:

e Receipt of the payment bond from Greystone Construction Company.
o Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company commitment letter.

I request the Commissioners enter into an agreement and give notice to proceed at the June 14" Commissioner’s meeting
to Greystone Construction Company. If you have any questions, please do not hesitate to contact me at 765-361-4132.

Sincerely,

WYYA

James Peck, PE
Montgomery County Engineer

cc: Tom Klein, Montgomery County Administrator
Dan Taylor, Montgomery County Attorney
Jake Lough, Montgomery County Highway Director
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Salt Barn Contract - Greystone Construction Company

Friday, June 11, 2021 8:33 AM
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MONTGOMERY COUNTY PUBLIC WORKS CONSTRUCTION AGREEMENT

This Contract, dated . 2021, is hereby entered by and between the
Montgomery County Board of Commissioners (“Board”) and
Greystone Construction Company {“Contractor”).

The Board and Contractor, in consideration of the mutual covenants set forth below, agree as
follows:

1. Work. Contractor shall complete all work as specified or indicated in the plans and
specifications contained in the request for quotes. The accompanying specifications are attached to this
contract and shall be considered terms of this contract as is written in full herein. The Work is generally
described as follows: Montgomery County Highway Department Salt Barn Project 2021.

2. Contract Times.
a, All time limits for milestones, if any, substantial completion, and completed and
readiness for final payment as stated in the request for quotes and the Contractor’s
accepted quote are of the essence of this contract.
b. The work will be substantially completed by

3. Liquidated Damages. Contractor and the Board recognize that time is of the essence of this

contract and that the Board will suffer financial and other losses if the work is not completed within the time

specified in Section 2 above, plus any extension thereof allowed in accordance with the notice of bid and bid
documents. The parties also recognize the delays, expense, and difficulties involved in proving in a legal or
arbitration proceedings the actual loss suffered by the Board if the work is not completed on time.

Accordingly, instead of requiring such proof, the Board and Contractor agree that as liquidated damages for
delay, but not as a penalty, the Board, in the form of a Change Order, shall deduct from the monies due to
Contractor $200.00 for each calendar day that expires after the times specified in Section 2 above and $100
for each day of unexcused delay.

4, Payment to Contractor.
a. The Board shall pay Contractor for completion of the work in accordance with the
Contractor’s quote from current funds in the amountof$_196,890.00
and upon the fulfillment of conditions set for in Section 4(b) through (i}

below.

b. At the completion of the work, the Montgomery County Engineer will inspect the work
done and file a written report to the Board either approving or disapproving the work
dane. A claim for payment under this contract will not be approved by the Board until
the work for which the claim is presented has been approved by the County Engineer.
After the acceptance of the work by the County Engineer, the Contractor shall file with
the board a verified statement that all expenses incurred for labor and material, except
for any expenditures specified in the statement, have been paid in full.

c. The parties agree that the Board will withhold final payment until the Contractor has
paid all subcontractors, material suppliers, laborers, and those furnishing services, as
required by Indiana Code 36-1-12-12 and 13. If there is not a sufficient sum owed to the
Contractor to pay those hills, the sum owed to the Contractor will be prorated in
payment of the bills among the subcontractors, material suppliers, laborers, and those
furnishing services; and

d. To receive payment from the Board, a subcontractor, material supplier, laborer, or
person furnishing services must file a claim with the Board not later than 60 days after
that person performed the last labor, furnished the last materials, or performed the last

PMB-1
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service. The Contractor will, prior to the commencement of construction of the project,
provide notice of this requirement to all subcontractors, laborers, material suppliers, and
persons furnishing services for the project;

e. If there is no dispute among the claimants, the Board will pay the claim from any money
due to the Contractor and deduct the amount of the claims from the contract price. The
Board will take a receipt for each payment made;

f. Ifthereis a dispute among claimants, the Board will retain sufficient money to pay all
claims until the dispute is settled and the correct amount is determined. However, the
Board may make a final and complete settlement with the Contractor after thirty (30)
days after completion and acceptance of the project if the Contractor has materially
fulfilled all of its obligation under this agreement;

g, If the Board receives a claim from a subcontractor or material supplier, the Board will
withhold the amount of the claim until the claim is resolved;

h. A claim must be signed by the County Engineer; and

i. PAYMENT BOND. The Contractor shall furnish a Payment Bond properly executed by a
Corporate Surety satisfactory to the Owner in the penal sum of not less than one hundred
percent (100%) of the Contract Price. Now, therefore, the conditions of this obligation are
such that if the Contractor shall promptly make payments of all amounts due to all
Claimants, then this obligation shall be void; otherwise to remain in full force, virtue, and
effect. “Claimant” shall mean any subcontractor, material supplier or other person, firm, or
corporation furnishing materials or equipment for or performing labor or services in the
prosecution of the work provided in such an agreement, including lubricants, oil, gasoline,
coal, and coke, repairs on machinery, and tools, whether consumed or used in connection
with the construction of such work, and al! insurance premiums on said work, and for all
labor, performed in such work.

Contractor's Representations
a. Contractor represents the following:

i. Contractor has examined and carefully studied the request for bids,
specifications, other documents, and any data and reference items pertinent to
this Contract.

il. Contractor is familiar with and is satisfied as to all Laws and Regulations that may
affect costs, progress, and the performance of this work.

iii. Contractor has reviewed the specifications and other contract documents and
believes them to be generally sufficient to indicate and convey understanding of
all terms and condition for performance and furnishing of the work.

iv. Contractor will perform all work under the supervision of the Montgomery
County Engineer and in accordance with the plans, specifications, and profiles
adopted by the Board. The accompanying specifications are attached to this
contract and shall be considered terms of this Contract as is written in full herein.

v. Contractor will provide the Board before the work begins with the following
documents:

1. Contractor’s Nepotism Policy Compliance Affidavit;

2. E-Verify Affidavit;

3. Indiana Iran Investment Certification; and

4. Any other affidavit or form required by the Board pursuant to Board
policy, Indiana Law, and/or Federal Law.

PMB-2
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b. Contractor verifies the following:

i. Liability Insurance: The Contractor has in place and will keep in place during the
terms of this agreement general liability insurance coverage with at least a $1,000,000 limit
of liability for each occurrence and at least a $3,000,000 general aggregate limit, as required
by Indiana Code 5-16-13-10;

ii. Qualification: The Contractor is qualified to perform public works projects in the
State of Indiana, as provided for in Indiana Code 4-13.6-4 or 8-23-10;

iii. E-Verify Compliance: The Contractor participates in the E-Verify program and
complies with Indiana Code 22-5-1.7. The Contractor’s E-Verify case verification number is
108887 ;

iv. Cash Payments: The Contractor will not pay individuals employed by the
Contractor in cash for work done by the individual on this project, as prohibited by Indiana
Code 6-16-13-11;

v. Overtime Rules: The Contractor is in compliance with, and will remain in
compliance with during the term of this agreement, the requirements of the federal Fair
Labor Standards Act of 1938, as amended (29 U.S.C. 201-209) and Indiana’s wage and
overtime laws as provided for in indiana Code 22-2-2-1 through 22-2-2-8;

vi. Workers Compensation: The Contractor is in compliance with the Indiana
Workers Compensation laws {Indiana Code 22-3-5-1) and has provided the Board with proof
of sufficient coverage under Indiana law prior to beginning work. The Contractor will keep
this insurance in place during the term of this agreement;

vii. Unemployment Compensation: The Contractor is in compliance with Indiana’s
rules, regulations and requirements regarding unemployment compensation, as required by
Indiana Code 22-4-1 through 39.5;

viii. Drug Testing: If the public work is for $150,000 or more, the Contractor has in
place a drug testing policy and complies with all requirements of Indiana Code 4-13-18-1
through 7;

ix. Training Program: If the Contractor employs ten or more persons, the Cantractor
has in place a training requirement which satisfies the requirements of Indiana Code 5-16-13-
12;

x. Payroll Records: The Contractor will preserve for a period of three (3) years after
the completion of the project any and all payroll and related records and make the record
available for inspection by the Indiana Department of Workforce Development; and

Xi. Anti-Discrimination: Neither the Contractor nor its subcontractors not anyone
acting on their behalf will, in the hiring of employees for the performance of the work under
this agreement, by reason of race, religion, color, sex, national origin or ancestry discriminate
against any citizen of the State of Indiana who is qualified and available to perform the work
to which the employment relates. Neither the Contractor nor its subcontractors nor any
person acting on their behalf will in any manner discriminate against or intimidate any
employee hired for the performance of work under this agreement on account of race,
religion, color, sex, national origin or ancestry. The Contractor acknowledges and agrees that
pursuant to Indiana Code 5-16-6 there can be deducted from the amount payable to the
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Contractor by the Board under this agreement a penalty of Five Dollars ($5.00) for each
person for each calendar day during which such person was discriminated against or
intimidated by the Contractor or his agents in violation of this agreement. The Contractor
also acknowledges and agrees that the Board may cancel and terminate this agreement and
that all money due or to become due to Contractor under the agreement may be forfeited
for any second or any subsequent violation of Indiana Code 5-16-6.

xii. Doing Business with Iran: The Contractor does not do business with Iran in
violation of Indiana Code 36-1-12-23

6. Change Orders. If a change in the original scope of work occurs and this change increases or
decreases the amount of the price, the Board will not be obligated to the Contractor unless a written change
order has been presented by the Contractor to the County Engineer, signed by the Contractor, signed by the
County Engineer, and approved by the Board. A change order issued under this subsection becomes an
addendum to the contract. The parties may not approve a change order before the commencement of the
project, unless an emergency exists and is so declared by the Board and shown in the meeting minutes of the
Board. The total of all change orders cannot exceed 20% of the original price. Change orders issued as a
result of circumstances that could not have been reasonably foreseen do not count toward the 20%
limitation on change orders. All change orders must be directly related to the project. If a change order
contains additional units of materials included in the original agreement, the cost of these units in the change
order must be the same as the cost of these units in the approved quote.

7. Breach of Contract. In the event of a breach of the terms of this Contract, the non-breaching
party shall be entitled terminate the Contract and recover from the breaching party any and all damages
caused by the breach, including but not limited to, incidental and consequential damages, court costs,
mediation costs, litigation expenses, and reasonable attorney’s fees. Neither party shall hold the other
responsible for damages or delay in performance caused by acts of God, strikes, lockouts, or other events
beyond the control of the party’s control.

8. Assignment of Contract. No assignment by a party hereto of any rights under or interest in
the Contract will be binding on another party thereto without the written consent of the party sought to be
bound. Further, Contractor may not subcontract any part of this contract without the written consent of the
Board. The Board is entitled to withhold consent to subcontracting for good cause.

9, Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, the Board and Contractor agree to
indemnify and hold the other {and their respective officers, directors, partners, agents, consultants, and
employees) harmless, from and against liability for all claims, costs, losses, and damages, including but not
limited to all fees and charges of engineers, architects, attorneys, and other professionals, arising out of or
relating to the project, to the extent such claims, losses, damages, or expenses are caused by the
indemnifying party’s negligent acts, errors, or omissions. In the event claims, losses, damages or expenses
are caused by joint or concurrent negligence of the parties, they shall be borne by each party in proportion to
the negligence.

10. Notices. Notices required under this Contract shall be sent to
a. The Montgomery County Board of Commissioners
i. 110 W South Blvd. Crawfordsville, IN 47933
b. Contractor:
i
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11. Successors and Assigns. The Board and Contractor each binds itself, its successors, assigns,
and legal representatives to the other party hereto, its successors, assigns, and legal representatives in
respect to all covenants, agreements, and obligation contained in this Contract.

12, Severabhility. Any provision of the Contract held to be void or unenforceable under any Law
or Regulation shall be deemed stricken, and all remaining provisions shall continue to be valid and binding
upon the Board and Contractor, who agree that the Contract shall be reformed to replace such stricken
provision or part thereof with a valid and enforceable provision that comes as close as possible to expressing
the intention of the stricken provision.

IN WITNESS WHEREQF, the Board and Contractor have signed this Contract.

This Contract shall become effective on

The Board: Contractor: .
Montgomery County Greystone Construction Company

Board of € L 500 5 Marschall Rd STE 300
oard of Lommissioners Shakopee, MN 55379

Y/

By: By: Scott Hartman

Title: Title: Project Manager
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CONTRACTOR'S BID FOR PUBLIC WORK - FORM 96

State Form 52414 (R2 / 2-13) / Form 96 {Revised 2013)
Prescribed by State Board of Accounts

PART |
(To be completed for all bids. Please type or print)

Date (month, day, year):_May 24, 2021

1. Governmental Unit (Owner):_Montgomery County

2. County :_Montgomery

3. Bidder (Firm);_Greystone Construction Company

Address: 500 S Marschall Rd Suite 300

City/State/ZIPcode:_Shakopee, MN 55379

4. Telephone Number;_952-496-2227

5. Agent of Bidder (if applicable):

Pursuant to notices given, the undersigned offers to fumish labor and/or material necessary to complete

the public works project of _Montgomery County Highway Department Salt Barn

(Governmental Unit) in accordance with plans and specifications prepared by y County Engineating Dep
and dated April 21, 2021 for the sum of
One Hundred Ninety Six Thousand Eight Hundred Ninety $_196.890

The undersigned further agrees to fumish a bond or certified check with this bid for an amount specified in the
notice of the letting. If alternative bids apply, the undersigned submits a proposal for each in accordance with the
notice. Any addendums attached will be specifically referenced at the applicable page.

If additional units of material included in the contract are needed, the cost of units must be the same as
that shown in the original contract if accepted by the governmental unit. If the bid is to be awarded on a unit
basis, the itemization of the units shall be shown on a separate attachment.

The contractor and his subcontractors, if any, shall not discriminate against or intimidate any employee,
or applicant for employment, to be employed in the performance of this contract, with respect to any matter
directly or indirectly related to employment because of race, religion, color, sex, national origin or ancestry.
Breach of this covenant may be regarded as a material breach of the contract.

CERTIFICATION OF USE OF UNITED STATES STEEL PRODUCTS
(If applicable)

|, the undersigned bidder or agent as a contractor on a public works project, understand my statutory
obligation to use steel products made in the United States (l.C. 5-16-8-2). | hereby certify that | and all
subcontractors employed by me for this project will use U.S. steel products on this project if awarded. |
understand that violations hereunder may result in forfeiture of contractual payments.
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ACCEPTANCE

The above bid is accepted this day of . , subject to the

following conditions:

Contracting Authority Members:

PART &
(For projects of $150,000 or more — IC 36-1-12-4)

Governmental Unit: _Montgomery County Highway Department

Bidder (Firm) Greystone Construction Company

Date (month, day, year): _May 24, 2021

These statements to be submitted under oath by each bidder with and as a part of his bid.
Attach additional pages for each section as needed.

SECTION | EXPERIENCE QUESTIONNAIRE

1. What public works projects has your organization completed for the period of one (1) year prior to the
date of the current bid?
Completion
Contract Amount Class of Work Date Name and Address of Owner

331,294.00 Fabric Building May 2021 Lake County - Painesville, OH
188,850.00 Fabric Building Jan 2021 Fulton County - Wauseon, OH
167,945.00 Fabric Building Sept 2020 City of Lafayette, IN

126,300.00 Fabric Building Oct 2020 City of Greenwood, IN

What public works projects are now in process of construction by your organization?

Expected
Contract Amount Class of Work Cor'naglte;ion Name and Address of Owner
144,500.00 Fabric Building July 2021 City of Cloquet, MN
245,175.00 Fabric Building May 2021 Ottawa County - Oak Harbor, OH
144,500.00 Fabric Building June 2021 City of Lexington, MN
165,331.00 Fabric Building July 2021 City of Northfield, MN
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3. Have you ever failed to complete any work awarded to you? NO If so, where and why?

4, List references from private firms for which you have performed work.

See Attached

SECTION il PLAN AND EQUIPMENT QUESTIONNAIRE

1. Explain your plan or layout for performing proposed work. (Examples could include a narrative of when
you could begin work, complete the project, number of workers, etc. and any other information which you
believe would enable the governmental unit to consider your bid.)

Greystone can begin work as soon as permits and engineering are finalized. We will provide a

superindendent and project manager to this project. The superintendent will be on site will work is

being completed. Greystone will provide a 3-4 man crew to install the building foundations and

fabric structure. Bunker panel installation will be subcontracted out to a firm specializing in this type

of work.

2. Please list the names and addresses of all subcontractors fi.e. persons or firms outside your own firm
who have performed part of the work) that you have used on public works projects during the past five (5)
years along with a brief description of the work done by each subcontractor.

Hanson Silo Co - Lake Lillian, MN - Precast Bunker Walls

Wieser Concrete - Maiden Rock, WI - Precast Bunker Walls

Schneider Excavating - Norwood, MN - Sitework

Schluender Construction - Monticello, MN - Excavation/backfill

plus many more depending on location/scope of work. Contact us for a more complete list.
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3. If you intend to sublet any portion of the work, state the name and address of each subcontractor,
equipment to be used by the subcontractor, and whether you will require a bond. However, if you are
unable to currently provide a listing, please understand a listing must be provided prior to contract
approval. Until the completion of the proposed project, you are under a continuing obligation to
immediately notify the govemmental unit in the event that you subsequently determine that you will use a
subcontractor on the proposed project.

Subcontractor list will be provided after vetting all subcontract bids and prior to contract approval

4. What equipment do you have available to use for the proposed project? Any equipment to be used by
subcontractors may also be required to be listed by the governmental unit.

Pending. Greystone has several skidsteers available for concrete foundation install. We may choose

‘fo rent one locally rather than mobilizing from MN. We will rent forklifts and aerial lifts locally to install

the fabric structure. Itis preffered to rent equipment from a local outfit to ensure better service and

prevent cross country mobilization costs.

5. Have you entered into contracts or received offers for all materials which substantiate the prices used in
preparing your proposal? If not, please explain the rationale used which would corroborate the prices
listed.

yes, bids have been received from subcontractors and suppliers for all scopes of work.

SECTION Iii CONTRACTOR'S FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Attachment of bidder's financial statement is mandatory. Any bid submitted without said financial
statement as required by statute shall thereby be rendered invalid. The financial statement provided hereunder to
the governing body awarding the contract must be specific enough in detail so that said governing body can make
a proper determination of the bidder's capability for completing the project if awarded.
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SECTION IV CONTRACTOR'S NON — COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The undersigned bidder or agent, being duly swom on oath, says that he has not, nor has any other
member, representative, or agent of the firm, company, corporation or partnership represented by him, entered
into any combination, collusion or agreement with any person relative to the price to be bid by anyone at such
letting nor to prevent any person from bidding nor to include anyone to refrain from bidding, and that this bid is
made without reference to any other bid and without any agreement, understanding or combination with any other
person in reference to such bidding.

He further says that no person or persons, firms, or corporation has, have or will receive directly or
indirectly, any rebate, fee, gift, commission or thing of value on account of such sale.

SECTION V OATH AND AFFIRMATION

| HEREBY AFFIRM UNDER THE PENALTIES FOR PERJURY THAT THE FACTS AND INFORMATION
CONTAINED IN THE FOREGOING BID FOR PUBLIC WORKS ARE TRUE AND CORRECT.

Dated at 7'75-/'”% this /?-{4 day of MR,,V . dodl
é/‘e,ysﬁﬂe Constructoon Co.

me of Organizgtion)
~

~

Y.
-~ }
/res//en 7

(Title of Person Signing)

B

ACKNOWLEDGEMENT

STATE OF er{maosda )

)ss
COUNTY OF Jcot )

Before me, a Notary Public, personally appeared the above-named G‘I ordie 5 (,V\W\H’—E and

swore that the statements contained in the foregoing document are true and correct.

Subscribed and sworn to before me this 1“1 i day of Ma\/\, , 202 .

Notary Public

My Commission Expiresz/.)—a"\ V‘/Vl 2 ,, 2025
County of Residence: Scot—

VANA MARIE GREISCHAR
Notary Public
State of Minnesota
My Commission Expires
January 31, 2025
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Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Greystone Construction Company

EideBailly.

eidebailly.com
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EideBailly.

CPAs & BUSINESS ADVISORS

Independent Auditor’s Report

The Board of Directors
Greystone Construction Company
Shakopee, Minnesota

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Greystone Construction Company (the
Company), which comprise the balance sheet as of December 31, 2020, and the related statements of
income and retained earnings, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related notes to the
financial statements.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes
the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or
error.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of
America. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance
about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the entity’s
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also
includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall presentation of
the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

What inspires you, inspires us. | eidebailly.com

111 8. 2nd St,, Ste. 300 = Mankato, MN 56001-5803 | T 507.387.6031 | F 507.387.6436 EOE
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Opinion

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of Greystone Construction Company as of December 31, 2020, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Change in Accounting Principle

As described in Note 2 to the financial statements, the Company has adopted the provisions of FASB
Accounting Standards Update 2018-17, Targeted Improvements to Related Party Guidance for Variable
Interest Entities, which eliminates the application of variable interest entity guidance to entities under
common control for evaluation of consolidation and revises the disclosure requirements of such
relationships. Our opinion is not modified with respect to this matter.

Other Matter

The financial statements of the Company as of December 31, 2019, were audited by other auditors,
whose report dated March 12, 2020, expressed an unmodified opinion on those statements.

@Mur@

Mankato, Minnesota
March 9, 2021
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Greystone Construction Company
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Assets

Current Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Contract receivables, net
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts
Prepaid expenses and other current assets

Total current assets
Property and Equipment, net
Other Assets

Related party receivable
Property held for sale

Cash surrender value of life insurance

Total other assets

Liabilities and Stockholders' Equity

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable
Accrued liabilities
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts
Current maturities of long-term debt

Total current liabilities
Long-term Debt, net of Current Maturities
Stockholders' Equity
Common stock: par value $0.01 per share
authorized 25,000 shares; issued and outstanding, 500 shares
Additional paid-in capital

Retained earnings

Total stockholders' equity

See Notes to Financial Statements
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2020 2019
$ 271,902 $ 3,748,927
11,587,284 9,214,210
1,395,956 303,264
279,559 365,196
13,534,701 13,631,597
849,507 713,157
127,934 177,934
307,345 407,345
110,540 110,540
545,819 695,819
$ 14,930,027 $ 15,040,573
$ 7,913,452 $ 8,927,269
739,420 852,375
2,309,232 2,239,296
79,301 34,998
11,041,405 12,053,938
263,621 82,115
5 5
800,495 800,495
2,824,501 2,104,020
3,625,001 2,904,520

$ 14,930,027 $ 15,040,573




Greystone Construction Company
Statements of Income and Retained Earnings
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Contract Revenues Earned $ 60,743,297 $ 80,452,578
Costs of Revenues Earned 53,908,548 73,544,856
Gross Profit 6,834,749 6,907,722
Operating Expenses
Overhead expenses 2,475,126 1,852,186
General and administration 4,099,959 3,867,663
Total operating expenses 6,575,085 5,719,849
Operating Income 259,664 1,187,873
Other Income (Expense)
Interest income 3,411 3,107
Interest expense (6,392) {13,522)
PPP loan forgiveness 1,177,400 -
Impairment of property held for sale {100,000) (100,000)
Miscellaneous income, net 60,620 36,689
Total other income (expense) 1,135,039 {73,726)
Net Income 1,394,703 1,114,147
Distributions to stockholders {674,222) (498,375}
Retained Earnings, Beginning of Year 2,104,020 1,488,248
Retained Earnings, End of Year S 2,824,501 S 2,104,020
See Notes to Financial Statements 4
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Greystone Construction Company
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2020 and 2019

2020 2019
Operating Activities
Net income $ 1,394,703 S 1,114,147
Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash
from (used for) operating activities
Depreciation 221,852 247,091
Gain on sale of equipment (73,925) {(12,353)
Gain on exchange of equipment - (44,032)
PPP loan forgiveness (1,177,400} -
Impairment of property held for sale 100,000 100,000
Changes in
Contract receivables (2,373,074) 759,256
Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings
on uncompleted contracts (1,092,692) 115,563
Prepaid expense and other current assets 85,637 58,611
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities (1,126,772} (1,493,355)
Billings in excess of costs and estimated earnings
on uncompleted contracts 69,936 1,166,669
Net Cash from {used for) Operating Activities (3,971,735) 2,011,597
Investing Activities
Purchase of property, equipment and vehicles (107,277) {223,917}
Payments received on related party receivable 50,000 75,000
Proceeds from the sale of equipment 91,775 78,362
Net Cash from (used for) Investing Activities 34,498 {(70,555)
Financing Activities
Payments on long-term debt (42,966) (57,149)
Proceeds from PPP loan 1,177,400 -
Distributions to stockholders (674,222) (498,375)
Net Cash from (used for) Financing Activities 460,212 (555,524)
Net Change in Cash and Cash Equivalents (3,477,025) 1,385,518
Cash and Cash Equivalents, Beginning of Year 3,748,927 2,363,409
Cash and Cash Equivalents, End of Year ) 271,902 $ 3,748,927
Supplemental Disclosure of Cash Flow information
Cash payments for interest S 6,392 S 13,522
Supplemental Schedule of Non-Cash Investing and Financing Activities
Equipment acquired through issuance of notes payable S 268,775 S 132,745

See Notes to Financial Statements
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Greystone Construction Company
Notes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Note 1- Significant Accounting Policies
Principal Business Activity

Greystone Construction Company is a general contractor with its primary office and shop facilities located in
Shakopee, Minnesota. The Company performs work under cost-plus-fee and fixed price contracts that are
typically completed in a year or less. The majority of the Company’s projects are located in Minnesota; however,
work is performed across the Upper Midwest.

Concentration of Credit Risk

The Company's financial instruments that are exposed to concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash
and cash equivalents and contract receivables. Management believes the Company places its cash and cash
equivalents with high quality credit institutions. At times, cash and cash equivalents may be in excess of the FDIC
insurance limit.

Additionally, due to the nature of the Company's business, contract receivables and contract revenues from
certain customers may, at times, represent a substantial portion of outstanding receivables and total contract
revenues.

Cash and Cash Equivalents

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all cash and short-term investments with
an original maturity of three months or less to be cash and cash equivalents.

Contract Receivables

The Company grants credit to customers subject to a favorable credit analysis. Contract receivables are due 30
days after the billing date and retentions are due upon project completion and owner acceptance. Liens are
generally available to be filed as security for the receivables if necessary. The Company generally does not
charge interest on outstanding receivables. Payments of accounts receivable are allocated to the specific
invoices identified on the customer’s remittance advice or, if unspecified, are applied to the earliest unpaid
invoices.

The Company uses the allowance method to account for uncollectible receivables. The allowance is based on the
Company’s historical losses, management’s evaluation of the existing economic conditions in the industry and
the financial stability of its customers. When the Company has exhausted all coliection efforts and the
receivables are deemed uncollectible, they are charged off against the allowance.
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Greystone Construction Company
Motes to Financlal Statements
December 31, 2020 and 201%

The asset, "Costs and estimated earnings in excess of billings on uncempleted contracts,” represents revenues
recognized in excess of amounts billed, The liability, “Billings in excess of cests and estimated sarnings on
uncompleted contracts,” represents billings In excess of revenues recagnized. These balances represent contract
assets and contract liahilities, respectively.

Revenue is recognized over time as work is perfermed, Since control is transferred over time, revenue is
recognized based on the progress towards completion of the performance obligation.

income Taxes

Tha Company, with the consent of its stockholders, has elected Lo be taxed under the provisions of Subchapter 5
of the internal Revenue Code, The election provides that, in lieu of corporation income taxes, the stockholders
are taxed on their proportionate shares of the Company's taxable income. Therefore, ne provision or llability for
income taxes has been incluged in the financial statements. Certain specific deductions and credits flow through
the Company to its stockholders.

The Company evaluates its tax positlons that have been taken or are expected to be taken oh income tax returns
to determine if an accrual is necessary for uncertain tax positions. The Company will recognize future accrued
interest and penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits in income tax expense if incurred,

Presentation of Taxes

The Company performs work for customers in states and municipalities in which those governmental units may
impose an exclse tax on certain revenues. The Company collects excise taxes and remits the entire amount to
the various governmental units. The Company’s accounting polley is to include the tax collected and remitted In
revenue and cost of construction, which was approximately 5230,000 and $-0- at December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively.

Estimates

The praparation of the financlal statements in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles requires
managemant to make estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities at
the date of the financial statements and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting

pericd, Actual results could differ from those estimates,

Subseguent Events

Subsequent events have been evaluated through March 9, 2021, which is the date the financial statements were
available to be Issued.
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Greystone Construction Company
Notes to Financlal Statemants
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Note 2- Change in Accounting Principle

As of January 1, 2020, the Company adopted the provisions of Accounting Standards Update {ASU) 2018-17,
Targeted Impravements to Related Porty Guidonce for Variable Interest Entities. This accounting alternative
allows management to elect, when certain conditions exlst, to not apply variable interest entity guldance for
assessing whether It should consolidate legal entities under common control. Adoption of this accounting
standard update requires retroactive application by restating the financial statements of all prior periods
presented. No changss to previcusly issued financial resulted from the adoption of this accounting standard as
these entities were not determined to be variable interest entltles In 2019, The Company has adopted this
standard as management believes the presentation of Company-only financial information is more relevant to
the users of the financial statements.

Mote 3- Contract Receivables

Contract receivables consist of:

2020 2019 2018
Contract Receivables $ 10,665,942 $ 7,568,528 5 T.847,728
Retainaga 971,342 1,695,682 2,175,738
11,637,284 9,264,210 10,023,466
Allowance for doubtful collections 150,000} [50,000) {50,000)

5 11,587,284 5 9214 210 5 9973466

Note 4 - Uncompleted Contracts

Information with respect to uncompleted contracts is as follows:

2020 2019 2B
Costs allocated to uncompleted contracts 5 43,270,882 % 54,143,226 $ 45837673
Estimated earnings thereon 4,378,333 4,896,729 3,650,934
Billings applicable thereto (48,562,451} (70,975,967) (50,142,407}

i,._ 913,276} 5 (1,936,032) S (653,800}
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Greystone Construction Company

Nates to Financial Statements
Decermnber 31, 2020 and 2019

Included in the accompanying balance sheets as follows:

2020 2018 2018
Costs and estimated earnings In excess of
Blllings on uncompleted contracts 5 1,395,495 & 103,264 s 418,827
Biflings in excess of costs and estimated
earnings on uncompleted contracts 12,309,232} {2,23%,296) (1,072,627}
5 1913,276) S [1,5936,032) & [B53,800)
Note5- Property and Equipment
Froperty and equipment consist of:
2020 2019
Leasehald improvements 5 302,600 5 202 600
Equipment 1,648,466 1,543,390
Vehicles 1,073,326 1,097,211
3,024,392 2,943,201
Accumulated depreciation {2,174,885) {2,230,044)
5 849,507 5 713,157

Mote b - Cash Surrender Value of Life Insurance

The Company has a split-dellar lIfe insurance agreement with a stockhelder that provides for the Company’s
interest in the pelicy to be the lessar of the cash surrender value of the policy or premiums paid by the
Company. The Company has recorded an asset in the cash surrender value of $5110,540 at December 31, 2020

and 2019

Mote 7- Line of Credit

The Company maintains a revolving line of credit with a bank that provides for available borrowings (subjecttoa
borrowing base) up to $2,500,000. Barrowings under the credit line bear interest at a variable rate equal to the
Wall Street Journal Prime Rate, subject to a floor rate of 3.50%. Borrowings are also subject to certain financial
and nonfinancial covenants and are secured by substantially all business assets and the guaranty of a
stockholder. The Company previously held a $1,500,000 revolving line of credit, which matured in 2020. There
were na borrowings under these arrangements at December 31, 2020 and 20189,

10
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Greystone Construction Company
MNotes to Financial Statements
Drecember 31, 2020 and 2019

Mote 8 - Long-Term Debt

Long-term debt conslsts of:

2020 2019
Installment notes, payable in manthly payments ranglng from
5785 - 53,332 at rates ranging from 3,99% to 4.74% and due
from May 2022 to December 2026, secured by vehicles 5 342,022 s 117,113
Current matutities 179,301) {34,998}

5 263,621 5 82,115

Future maturities of long-term debt are as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2021 5 79,301
2022 80,469
2023 63,511
2024 40,845
2025 17,302
Thereafter 41,494

5 342922

Mote 9- Paycheck Protection Program {[PPP) Loans

The Company was granted a 51,177,400 loan under the PPF administered by a Small Business Administration
{SBA} approved partner. The loan was uncollateralized and was fully guaranteed by the Federal government. The
Company Initially recorded a loan payable and subsequently recorded forgiveness when the loan ebligation was
legally released by the SBA. The Company recognized 31,177,400 of loan forgiveness Income in the

accom panying 2020 statement of income and retalned earnings for the year ended December 31, 2020.

Subsequent to year-end, the Company was awarded an additional loan of the same amount under the Paycheck
Protection Program [PPP), totaling 51,177,400, The loan is also uncollateralized and is fully guaranteed by the
Federal government. The loan accrues interest at 1.00%, but payments are not required to begin until after the
loan forgiveness date as defined in the agreement. The Company I3 eligible for loan forgiveness of up to 100% of
the loan, upon meeting certain requirements. Payments under the loan, if any, will be determined based an the
unforgiven balance amortized monthly through january 2026, the maturity date of the loan. The Company
intends 1o take measures to maximlze the loan forgiveness but cannot reasonably determine the portion of the
loan that will ultimately be forgiven.

11
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Greystone Construction Company
Motes to Financial Statemeants
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Mote 10 - Operating Leases

The Company leases Its affice and shop facilities in Shakopee, Minnesota from a related party as further
discussed in Mote 12, The office lease expiras January 2022 and requlres monthly payments of 519,593 with
maturity in January 2022 and the shop lease requires manthly payments of 37,709 with maturity in December
2071. The Company also leases small offlce spaces in Bismarck, North Dakota and 5pirlt Lake, |owa from third
parties. The Bismarck office lease requires monthly payments of 51,450 through July 2023 and the Spirit Lake
office lease requires monthly payments of $595 through January 2022, All leases reguire paymeant of applicable
operating expenses. Lease expense for facilities was $348,072 and 5329,02% for the years ended December 31,
2020 and 2019, respectively.

The Company also leases twenty-one vehicles from a third party under operating leases requiring monthly
payments from $354 to $1,249 par vehicle. Lease expense far vehicles was 5195,486 and 5167,142 for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

Future minimurn lease payments of all operating leases ara approximately as follows:

Years Ending December 31, Amount
2021 5 554,000
2022 210,000
2023 111,000
2024 47,000

S 922000

Note 11 - Employee Retirement Plan

The Company has a 401{k) retirement plan that covers all employees who are at least 20 years of age with one
or more years of service, The Company's contribution is based an matching 25% of the first 826 of salary deferral
elected by each eligible employee. Total contributions to the plan were 533,242 and 582,727 for the years
ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, the Company may elect to make a proflt sharing
contribution annually, which totaled 5186,816 and 5156,903 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2013,
respectively.

Mote 12 - Related Party Transactions and Entities Under Common Control
Management and Consulting Services
The Company performs management and consulting services for entities that are owned in full or part by

stockhobders of the Company. Management service revenue was 558,405 and 557,942 for the years ended
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.

12
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Greystone Construction Company
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Facilities

As described in Note 10, the Company enterad into a lease with Marschall Road Venture [MRV}, an entity
related through common ownership of one of its stockhelders. MRY owns a building located in Shakopee, MN
and leases office space to the Company as well as other third parties. Rents paid to the entity totaled 5239,614
and $219,122 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively. Additionally, the Company leases
shop space from one of its stockholders, totallng 592,507 for each of the years ended December 31, 2020 and
2019,

During 2024, the Company entered into certain transactlons with GS Moving Up, LLC, an entlty related through
common ownership of its majority stockholder. GS Moving Up, LLC has engaged the Company to bulld a new
office building in Shakopee, MN with a contract totaling approximately 55,100,000, in which the Company plans
to lease new office space for its headguarters in 2021. As consideration for the construction loan obtained in
2020 by GS Moving Up, LLC, the Company {along with the majority stockholder) has guaranteed the loan
amount up to 55,025,000, There was na balance outstanding on the nate payable at December 31, 2020;
however, G5 Moving Up, LLC is expected to take substantial draws oh the note in 2021, during the completion of
the office building, The Company belisves the maximum exposure under the guarantee is the full amount of the
note payable; however, due to other guarantees and security, management believes the likeliheod of acting
under this guaranty is remote. Revenue earned from the contract to construct the new office building was
51,367,722 for the year ended December 31, 2020,

Related Party Receivable

The Company made advances to NLF Structures, LLC {NLF), an entity owned by a stockholder of the Company
that manufactures fabric structures to be used in certain construction projects. There are no scheduled
payments and na interest charged on the advances, which total $127,934 and $177,934 at December 31, 2020
and 2019, respectively. The Company expects payment in full; however, the timing of payments is unkhown. As
a result, the related party receivable is shown as non-current in the accompanying balance sheets. NLF's
revenue is generated from sales to the Company, and cash generated from the sales is used to pay down the
ralated party receivable due to the Company. The Company believes the maximum exposure 1o loss related to
MLF is the amount of the related party recelvable outstanding at December 31, 2020, which was $127,934.
Management belioves the risk of loss relating 1o this receivable is remote.

Construction Contracts

The Company regularly enters into market rate construction contracts and small jobs with varlous entities
related through common ownership. Revenues earned from these contracts, including transactions with GS
Moving Up, LLC, totaled 54,539,104 and 5610,537 for the years ended December 31, 2020 and 2019,
respectively. Receivables outstanding related to these contract revenues totaled 51,068,574 and 533,870 a1
December 31, 2020 and 2019, respectively.
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Greystone Construction Company
Motes to Financial Statements
December 31, 2020 and 2019

Note 13 - Backlog

The following schedule shows a reconciliation of backlog, which represents the amount of revenye the Company
expects to realize fram work to be performed on uncompleted contracts at December 31, 2020 and from
contractual agreements on which work has not yet begun:

Backlog balance, December 31, 2015 & 27,500,354
Mew contracts during the yvear 96,050,693

123,551,087
Contract revenue earnad durlng the year jED, 743,297
Backiog balance, December 31, 2020 5 62807790

The Cempany, as conditlons for entering into certain construction contracts, has autstanding surety bonds of
approximately 533,400,000 at Dacamber 31, 2020, The bonds are collateralized by contract receivables as well
as personally puaranteed by a stockholder.

In addition, between January 1, 2021 and March 9, 2021, the Company has obtained additional construction
contracts totafing approximately $13,800,000.

Note 14 - Disaggregated Revenue

The Company disaggregates revenue based on aperating divisions as It bs the format that s regularly reviewed
by management. Operating divisions include agribusiness, multl-family housing, commercial, industrial,
fabric/commodity storage and facility solutions. The following table presents disaggregated revenue for the
years ended December 31, 2020 and 2015:

2020 20149
pAgribusiness § 27467207 5 35,010,947
Multi-family housing 12,087,072 15,408,028
Carmimerclal 9,072,161 15,033,005
Industrlat 2,404 626 7,840,295
Fabricfcommodity storage G, E71,802 4,431,876
Facllity selutions 2,740,429 2,618,423

§ 60,743,297 S B0,452,578

Note 15 - Commitment

The Company and ts stockholders have entered Into agreements that generally restrict the transfer of the
Company’s stack. Among other provisions, the agreements provide for the majerity stockholder to have first
right of refusal on purchasing stock offered for sale. If not exercised, the remaining stockholders first and then
the Campany is given the option to purchase the stock, The purchase price for any transfers are determined by
the stockholders annually and payment terms are determined by options provided within the agreement.

14
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 DESCRIPTIUN UF OPEIRATIONS { LBCATIONS | WPHICLES {ALORD 1d1,MdIIIn||;I-Hnmnr||: Sahedula, may be attachad if mom specs is sgeiod)

GERTIFICATE HOLDER

CANCELLATHIN

Mieigarmery Counly Highwey Lapartimant
%W Snoualh Blwel

Cravalordsuille L 47033

I

SHOULD ANY OF THE ABOVE DESCRIBED POLICIES BE CAMCELLED BEFORE
THE EXFIRATION DATE THEREDF, NOTICE WILL BE DELIVERED IN
ATGORDANGE WITH THE POLICY PROVISIONS.

AUTHOR ZED REPRESENTAT Vi

(btd S

ACORD 25 (2016/03)
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Additional Named Insureds

Other Mamed Insureds

Viaier fonabvnckian #asvican, LLO

Dlwibad Lrabkllity Company,

fddizdianal Mamed Insoped

QOFARPIMF (0202007)

GOPYRIGHT 2007, AMS BERVICES INC
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POST BID SUBMITTAT,
MANUFACTURERS LIST

Jnstructions To Bidders:

The Bidder shall enter, in the spaces provided below, (he name of the marmgacturer for ALL
material and equipment listed below, 1o be incorparated into the Work,

Failure io furnish all information foe cach lisied material ov equipment ifeny(s) may vender the
bid non-responsive,

Freliminary acceptance of equipment listed by the manufaciurer’s rame shall not i any way
constitute o waiver of the Drawing and Specification vequivements covering such eguipment.
Acceptance will be based on fll conforminy with the Drawings and Specifications covering the
equipmeni,

The information submitted on this Posi-Bid-3 page does not alleviate the Bidder from submitting
the required SubconiractorSupplier Information on the Posi-Bid-4 page.

Material/Equiprment Manufacturer
T2x88 Fabric Nailding Britespan
Procast Hunker panels Wicoor Concrete
POST-BID-2
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POST BID SUBMITTAL
SUBCONTRACTOR/SUPPTIER PARTICIPATICHN

SUBCONTRACTORS LIST

Instructions To Bidders:

The Bidder shall enter the nomes and the type of work to be done in the Subcontractars List
which follows far each Subcontractor that the Bidder proposes to use for the Work who will be
providing wark for an agreed price of five percent (3%} or greater of the amount Bid as stated
whave in Part 2,

Only one Subcontractor shall be listed for each work item. Upon award of @ contract, the
nemed Subcontractors shall be employed to perform the work, unfess changes are specifically
authorized hy the OWNER. Faifure to furndsh olf information requested may render the Bid
non-responstve If It is determined that such omissian is material by affording the Bidder o
substanticol advantage over other Bidders.

Except as otherwise specifically stated by the Bidder In this Part, omission of any names of
Subcontractars herein shafl constitute an affirmative representation and statement that the
Bidder proposes to use his own wark forces for most af the Work such that he wilf have no
Subcantractars providing work in the amount af five percent (5%} or greater of the amount

Bid.
Subcantractor Mame Wark Price
Wisser Concrets bunker panels 543,000

{use additionat sheets if necessary]

POST-BID-|
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Mationwide Mutual Insurance Company

AMED Insurance Company
Natlunwide' AMllied Property and Casualty I.nsurancrz Campany

Farmlang Mutual Insurance Company

Matlonwide sgribusiness Insurance Company

1100 Locust 51, Department 2006

Des Moaines, 1A 30391-2006

June 10, 2021

Mantgomery County
100 E Main Street
Crawfordsville IN, 47933

RE: Greystone Construction Company
Mantgomery County Highway Department - Salt Barn

To Whaom [t May Concern;

Mationwide Mutual Insurance Company (MNationwide] has the privilege of providing Surety Credit for Greystone
Construction Company (Greystane Construction).  Nationwide is rated A+ (Superior) by A, M. Best with a
Financial Size Categony ¥V (52 Billion or greater) and is licensed to do business in all 50 states, They are currently
listed in the Department of the Treasury's Listing of Certifled Companies with an underwriting limitation of
51,260,052,000.00.

Mationwide has extended Greystone Construction a surety program supparting single projects in excess of
530,000,000.00 and an aggregate support of approximately $70,000,000.00. However, please understand the
aforementioned limits are not the maximum amaunts of surety crodit Groystone Construction’s surety would
extend. We have never declined surety support far this walued customer.

In the event that the Bid is sccepted and a Contract is awarded to Graystone Construction, and attheir request,
wie will execute and deliver a Payment Bond as required by the Contract Documents. This approval would be
subject to an appropriate review of the contract terms and conditions and details.

Please nate that the decision to issue performance and payment bonds is a matter between Greystone
Construction Company and Mationwide Mutval Insurance Company, and will be subject to standard
underwriting at the time of the final bond request, which will include but not be limited to the acceptability of

the contract documents, bond forms and financing, We assume no lability to third parties or to you if for any
reason we do not execute said bonds,

Sinceraly,

NATIONWIDE MUTUAL INSURAMCE COMPANY
/7 s

Colly D. White, Attornay-in-Fact

Mationwide Surety & Fidelity, 1100 Locust 56, Depl 2008, Des Malnes, |4 50391, P (866) 387-0457, F (866)-508-4101

New Section 1 Page 113



Power of Attornay

KMOW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS THAT:
Matiomede Mulust insurence Company, an Dhlo conporation

herelnafier referred (o severally as the “Company” and collecllvely as *1the Companlea’ daes hereby make, consiiiuie and appaini:

RACHEL THOMAS, MELINDA C BLODGETT, L.TH UTVEN, SANDY M ENGETRUM, BRIAN TOESTREICH, EMILY T WIITE,
COOLBY D WITITE, JOSHUA & LOYTES, BURT CLINDRLAD, MICOLE STILLINGS, MATHAM O WTRAVER, R.W. TRANI, R.C.
BOWNWAN, TED R JORGEMSEN

each in fhaiv individual capacily, its true and lawdul aliornay-in-fact, with fd power ard autherity bo gign, $ea), and execda on ils behaif amy and abl Bonds and
undertakings, and olher ohligatary instrurnents aof simllar nalure, in panalfies not xceading the sum of

UNLIMITEL
and to bind the Campany thereby, &z Tully &0d to 1he same exdent as if such instrumanis were sigred by tha duly aulhorized officers of the Company; and ell aciz
of sald Alormey pursuand to the aulorly given are hereby ratified sod conlirmed.

Thia pawer of Alkorney i made and axecuted pursuant to and by aytherdfy of tha fallpwing resolulon duly adopted by Ihe baard of directors of tha Company:

"RESCLWED, thal the president, or any vice president be, and each baceby is, sulhoizad and smpoiwanad 10 appaind attoonays-infact of tho Company,
and 10 authorize hem to execile ard dafver on behal! of the Campany any and ai bands, forms, appications, memorandums, underiakings,
recognizances, lransfers, contracls of indemaity, policizs, contracts guaranieeing the: fidelity of persons helding positions of public or private st and olher
writings atiioatony in nedura 1hat Ihe basiness of the Company may requice; and 1o modfy or revoke, wilh or wilhout cause, eny euch eppoisiment o
aulkorily; prosided. however, hat the aulloeily granled hereby shall in no way linsil e achoriky of other duly aushorized agents 1o sign and countersign amy
of aged documents an hehetf of the Comgany.”

"RESOLVED FURTHER, thal such aftorneys-iri-fact shak have full power and authorlly lo exgoute ang detver any and 26 such dacuments and 1o bind the
Company subject to the terma and limitations of the pawer of sttomey izsued to thern, and to affix the seal of the Company (harala; provided, Nowovas, hat
said swal shall nol be necessary Tor he validity of any such decurmenls.”

This pawer od altarney |2 gignad and sealed under and by tha follawing bylaws duly adopiad by the board of diroclars of the Company.

Expoulion of Inslrurnents. Any vice peesiderd, any assistant sechelany of ahy ass:stanl treaganes shall kave tha power and authorily to sign or aftest all
Bpproued documents, instrumants, contracis, or ather pepers in cornaclian with the opecaion of it besiness of 1he company in addlion ko the cheirmen of
Ihe baard, the chief execulive alficer, president. treazurer or secrelary; provided, however, the signaturs of any of tham may be printed, engraved, or
atgmped on any apeeoved documand, contrect, inelrumaent, or othar papers of the Compariy.

IN W THESS WHEREOQF, thie Cowrgary has saused Lhis Insinanent 1o be sealed ang duty steatad by the zignalure of its afficar the 277 day of Febiuary, 2019

A O Y

Antonio C. Alansse, Vice Prosident of Nalisawdoe MulLal Insurance Company
ACKNOWLEDGMENT

STATE OF WEW YOREK, COUNTY OF NEW YORK! 85

On his Z7* day of February, 2018, before me ceme the above-named officer for the Gormpany
eforesaid, to me personally know {o Le the affeer described Inand who executed tha pracading
Inatrument, and he acknovwledged the execulion of the samo, and belng by me duly swom, deposss
and says, thal he is the ofticer of the Company aloresald, 1hat the seal effixed horato s the
corporate seal of asid Company. and the said exporate seal and hs signatere were duly affxed
and gusscrbed 10 gaid Inetrumeant by 1he authoriy and direclion of said Cermpany.

ot L. Dula ’
Hzizry #ublkc, Haleal Kok ) fi ”! f g .
hn.0INCE1AEAAT NOCTE Fire .
il | Wt e Gy e )ﬂfﬁ- i AL B
Caririhdcn b ives deplerbes 16, 0031 & - detary Faliiz

MpCarevzmentnren
leprenize: w8, 1

GERTIFICATE
I, Laura B. Guy, Assisiant Segrotary of L Company, go hereby cesliy that the foregolng is a full, true and cormect copy of the original power of ellomesy issued
by the Company; {hat the reseludion incfuded therin is o lue and corect franscdas fram the minulas of the mestinge of the boards of Srectors and the same hae
not bees revaked of amanded in 90y manner; (hat sald Antonio ©. Albaness was on the dale of the executon of the foregoing power of altormay the dily slected
officer of the Compary, and the corporabe seal and his signalure a8 eflicer were duly affved and subscribed 1o the sald instument by 1he aulhority of said board
of direclors; and the joregalng pows: of sitarney is abill in ful force and offecl.

1N WITNESS WHERECF, | have hercunda subacribed my nime ns Asskslant Secretary, and affixed tha corporate seal of seid Company this __10th  daey of
June 2021 !

e une 20 A B C){m 6’_ C_-g-v\a_

Azglatart Secretary

80J 1{02-1900
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BIDDER'S ITEMIZED PROPOSAL
AND DECLARATIONS

Montgomery County, Indiuna

Ingtructions To Bidders:

This form shall be wtilized by all Bidders and submitted in its entivety with each bid. Except as otherwise
specifically provided, all Parts shall be filly and accurately filled in and completed and notarized

Project:  Montgomery County Highway Department — Salt Barn

Proposal For Construction of: Salt Barn
Daie: _May 24, 2021

To:  Mentgomery County Highway Deparitment
110 W South Blvd,, Crawfordsvilie, IN 47933

Summary of Bid

*Total Bid § 196,890

*Note: Bid amounis listed above will be read aloud at the time of bid opening and used for annoumcing
the apparent low bidder. Neither the Owaer nov the Engineer shall be required to discover or correct
any error or omission and the Bidder shall assume the risk of and be bound to the consequences of any
such ervor or omission. This amownt to shaff be used to cafeulate Bid Security and the ameonnts listed in
FPart 2 of Bidders ltemized Proposal and Declarations.

BID-1

New Section 1 Page 115



PART 1
BIDDER INFORMATION
(All information must be printed)

1.1 Bidder Name:  Greystone Conatruction Company

1.2 Bidder Address: Streel Address: 500 S Marschall Ad, Suite 300
City: _Shakopee State: _MN Zip:_55379
Phone #: (353 qgg-2227

1.3 DBidder is a/an fmark onef:

___Individual __ Partership ___ Indiana Corporation
_.__ Foreign (Our of State) Corporation

____ Joint Venture

4/ Other: Minpesota Corporation

1.4 [The fillowing must be answered if the Bidder or any of its pariners or joint venture pariies is a forefgn
corporation. Note: To do business in orwith Montgomery County, Indiana, foreign corporations must
register with the Secretavy of the State of indiana as required by the General Corporation Act (Indiana
Code 23-1-49 et seq) as stated therein and expresved in the Attorney General's Opinion #2, duted
Jaruary 13, 1958}

1 Corporation Name: Greystone Consfruction Company

2 Address: 500 5 Marschall Rd, Suite 300
Shakopee, MN 55379

3 Date registered with State of Indiana: 07/09/2020

A Indiana Repistered Agent:

Naxipe: CT Corporation System
amne 334 North Senate Ave
dianapaiis, IN 46204
Address:

BID-2
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21

22

PART 2
PROPOSAL (BID)

The undersigned Bidder pruposes to furnish all necessary labor, machinery, tools, apparatus,
materials, cquipment, service and other necessary supplies, and fo perform and tulfill all
obligations incident thereto in strict accordance with and within the timefs) provided by the teoms
and conditions of the Contract Documents for the above described Work and Project, including
any and all addenda theveto, for the Unit Prices applicable to the Contract Items as stated in Part 3
hereof, which Unit Prices of the Base Bid and all alternates combined, when mulliplied by
cslimaled ukl quantilies for such Contract Items, total

One hundred Ninety Shi Thousand Elght Hundred Ninety Trollars (3 186,880 3. The Bidder

acknowledges that evaluation of the lowest Bid shall be based on such sum and fimther
acknowhedges thal the unit quantities listed in Part 3 of this Proposal are estimates solely for the
purpose ofbid evaluation and contract awerd, and are not to be construed as exact or binding. The
Bidder further understands that all Work which may result on the Contract shall be compensated
for on a Unit Price basis and that the Owner and Engineer cannot and do not guarantee the mmount
or quantity of any itemn of Work to be performed or fumished under the Contract.

By submitting bid the Bidder agrees the bid proposal and price{s) contained herein shall be
valld for ninety {90} days from bid opening.

RIR-3
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4.1

4.2

PART 4
CONTRACT DOCUMENTS AND ADDIENDA

The Gidder agrees to be hound by the terms and provisions of all Confract Documents as defined
in the General Conditions and incotporates such Contract Documonts hercin by reference

The Bidder acknowledges receipt of the following addenda:

Addendum Number Date
i May 12, 2021
BID-4
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PARY S
EXCEPTIONS

5.1 The Bidder sholl fully state each excepiion waken to the Specifications or other Contract
Daocuments in Section 5.3 of this Pary.

5.2 Bidder is cautioned thai any exception iaken by Bidder and deemed by Owner to be a material
qualification or variance from the derms of the Coniract Documents ey vesilt in this Bid being
refected as non-responsive.

33 Exceptions:

BID-5

New Section 1 Page 119



PART 6
FINANCIAL STATEMENT

Attachment of Bidder's financial statement is mandatory. Any Bid submitted without said
financial statement as required by statute shall thereby be rendered invalid. The financial
statement provided hereunder to GWNER must be specific enough in detall so that OWNER
can make a proper determination of the Bidder's capability for completing the Work/Project
if awarded. Information on Bidder's company and financial staternent shall be consistent with
the information requested on the State Board of Accounts Farms #96a and #102, entitled
"Standard Questionnaires and Financial Statement for Bidders”.

BID-6
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7.1

7.2

7.3

PART 7
ADDI AL DECEARATIONS

Bidder certifies that it has thoroughly examined the site of the Work and informed itself fully
regarding all conditions under which it will be obligated to operste and that in any way affect the
Waork, and knows, understands and accepts the existing conditions, Bidder further certifies that it
has thoroughly reviewed the Contract Documents, including all Addends, and has had the
upportenity o ask questions and obtain interpretations or clarifications concerning Contract
Documents.

Bidder certifies thal it does not enpage in investment activities in Iran as more particularly
described in IC 5-22-16.5. Bidder shall provide immediale written notice to the Owner if, at any
time after enfering into an Agreement, Bidder learns that its cevtifications were erronsous when
spbmitted, or Bidder has been included on a list or received notice of intent to include on a list
created pursuant to IC 5-22-16.5. A person included upon a list created pursuant to 1C 5-22-16.5
shall be considered non-respongible for purposes of this competition.

Bidder certifies that it has a written plan for & program to test its employees for dmygs and that such
plan and program are in compliance with IC 4-13-18. The bidder further certifies that a copy of
this compliance plan has been submitted with this bid and is attached,

BID-&
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PART §
NON-COLLUSION AFFIDAVIT

The mdividual person(s) executing this Bid Proposal, being first duly swomn, depose(s) and state(s) that
the Bidder has not divectly or indirectly cntercd into a combination, collusion, endertaking or agreement
with any other bidder or person (i} relative to the price(s) proposed herein or to be bid by another person,
or (i) o prevent any person from bidding, or {jii) l induce a person to refrain from bidding; and
furthermore, this Bid Proposal is made and submitted without reference to any other bids and withoul
agreement, understanding or combination, either directly or indirectly, with any persons with reference to
such bidding in any way or manner whatsoever.

PFART 9
E-VERIFY PROGRAM

Pursuant io Indiana Code 22-3-1.7-11, the contractor awarded the Bid is tequired to enrol] in and verify
the work eligibility status of all its newly hired employees through the E-Verify program. The contractor
whao is awarded the Bid is not tequired 1o verify the work eligibility status of all its newly hired employees
through the E-Verify program if the E-Verify program no longer exists.

The individual person(s) executing this Proposal, being first duly sworn, depose(s) and state(s) that the
Bidder does not knowingly employ an unauthorized alien. The undersigned further affinms that, prior to

entering into an agreement for this Bid, the undersigned business entity will cnroll in and agrees to verify
the work eligibility status of all its newly hired employees through the E-Verify program.

BID-9
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PART 10
SIGNATURES

[Signature by or on behalf of the Bidder in the spaces provided below shall constitute execution of each
and every Part of this Itemized Proposal and Declarations document. SIGNATURE MUST BE

PROPERLY NOTARIZED. |

Written Signalure: %ﬁ M
& [

Printed Name: 6:4;-'"9{-;? Q/{mr'?zl-
Title: ﬁ"&f J‘:J?{.ﬁw ¥

Imporiant - Notary Sign 2 eal Required in the Space Bel

VANA MARIE GREISCHAR
Notary Public

STATEOF _ Mivinasetes

55 iy 53‘1!5 uf_M!nnaésogla
COUNTY OF __ Scott— " January 31, 2035
Subscribed and sworn to before me this ! qﬁﬂday of __ Wlawy.- L2072,
My commission expites: Jhimorg 31 2025 (Signed)
Residing in $C-f ,,".-,.]-— County, State of_ 11 '//l
BID-10
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E1D BOND
Montgomerv County, Indiana

Tnstructions To Bidders

Bidders wmay wse this form or other form containing the same material conditions and provisions as
approved in advance by Cwner/Obligee.

Bidder/Surety must attach a signed, certified and effective dated copy of the Power of Attorney or Attorney-
fn-Fuact establishing the authority of the personis) signing this Bid Bond on behalf of the Surety.

Surety company executivg this bond shafl appear on the most curvent list of "Surety Companies Acceptable

ont Federal Bonds," as specified in the US. Treasury Department Civealar 578 av amended, and be
atthorized (o fransget business in the Stote of Indiana,

KNCW ALL MEN BY THESE PRESENTS, that the undersigned

"Bidder": Greystone Construction Company
and
"Surety": [Narme] Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company
[Address] One West Naticnwide Blvd, 1-04-701

Columbus, OH §3215 ,

a corporation chartered and existing under the laws of the State of
Ohio , and authorized to do business in the State of
Indiana,

are held and firmly bound unto the Montgomery County, Indiana, {"Owner/Obligee"} in the full and
just sum equal to five percent (5%) of the price stated in the Bid Proposal described below, including
accepted alternates, if any, to be paid upon demand of the Owner/Obligee, together with interest
at the maximum legal rate from date of demand and any attorney fees and court costs incurred by
Owner/Obligee to enforee this instrurment, to which payment well and truly to be made we bind
ourselves, our heirs, executors, administrators, successors, and assigns, jpintly and severally and
firmly by these presents.

WHLREAS, the Owner/Obligee has solicited bids for certain Work for or in furtherance of construction
of public improvements deseribed generally as:

—Salt B

FROJE

rursuant to plans, specifications and other "Contract Doguments” ineluded as parts of and designated by
such solicitation; and WHERTEAS, the Bidder has submitted to the Owner/Oblipes a Bid Proposal (o
perform such Work,

NOW THEREFORE: The conditions of this obligation are such that i the Bid Proposal be accepted, with
or without conditions, the Bidder shall within such time thereafter as prescribed by the Conlract
Documents (1) Mulfill all conditions of such award that remain to be fulfilled, () execute 8 Contract in

BE-1
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accordance with the Bid Proposal and in the form and manner required by the Contract Documents, and
(i1} thereafter provide all bonds, and other documentation required by the Contract Documents to be
delivered to Owner/Obligee prior to commencing Work, including without limitation a sufficient and
salisfuctory Performance Bond and Payment Bond payable to Owner/Obligee, each in an amount of one
hundred percent (100%) of the total Contract price as awarded and in form and with surety satisfactory to
said Owner/Obligee, then this obligation to be void; otherwise to be and remain in full foree and virlue in
law, and the Surety shall, upon failure of the Bidder to comply with any or all of the foregoing requirements
within the time specified above and as prescribed by the Contract Documents, immediate pay to the
Owner/Obligee, upon demand, the amount hereofl, in good and lawful money of the United States of
America, not as a penalty, but as liquidated damages.

IN TESTIMONY THEREOF, the Bidder and Surety have caused this instrument (o be duly signed and
scaled this _24th  day of _ May 2021,

This Bid Bond shall bind the undersigned Surety whether or ot also sigied by the Bidder,
"Surety" Nationwide Mutual Insurance Company

By:

Printed:  Gordle Schmiltz, President Priné.’ijnshua R. Loftis, Attorney-lsi-Fact

BB-2
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CORPORATE ACKNOWLEDGMENT

State of _Minnescla )

y i Iss
County of 3 [ é"H-— 1

Onthis _ 2qm  dayof May 2021, before me appeared Gordie Schmitz ) )
to me personally known, who, being by me duly sworn, did say that he/she is the President
of Greystone Construction Company _, acorporation, that the seal affixed to the
foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation, and that said instrument was executed in
behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors, and that said Gordle Schmitz
acknowledged said instrument to be the free act and deed of sald corporation.

, VANA MARIE GREISCRAR (%ﬂm W
4 otary Publia v .
| stawe of Minneaota Motary Public Seadt County, w7
My Commisaion Explran
January 31, 2026 My commission expires _ 5 J&wn H.M""ii 21 Lo A
SURETY ACKNOWLEDGMENT
State of Minnesota ]
)55
Countly of Hennepin )
On this _ 2ath  day of May 2021, before me appeared Joshua R. Loftis
to me personally know, who being by me duly sworn, did say that (s)he is the Attorney-In-Fact of
Mationwide Mutual Insurance Company , & corporation, that the seal

affixed to the foregoing instrument is the corporate seal of said corporation and that said instrument was
executed in behalf of said corporation by authority of its Board of Directors; and that said

Joshua R. Loftis acknowledged said instrurment to be the free act and deed of said corporation.
i e :_-__-;_;_'___,2 o
; LIN ULVEN - ]
I NOTARY PUBLIC - MINWESOTA MNotary Public Rameey  Counly, Minnesola
My Commission Explres | My commission expires 112026 -

January 31, 2025
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Power of Attorney

IKMOVY ALL MEN DY THESE PRESENTS THAT:
Naflarmwide Mutuel insuranca Company, an Ohio corfaration

heralnafer rafenied 10 severally sa the "Company” and colleclivily a5 “lhe Compenies’ does hereby make, consiEule and appoink:

RACHEL THOMAS, MELINDA C BLODGELT, LIN ULVEN, SANDY M ENGSTRUM, BRIAN J OESTREICH, EMILY R WHITE,
COLBY D WHITE, JOSHUA R LOFTTS, KURT C LUNDBLAD, NICOLE STILLINGS, NATHAN C WEAVER, B.W, FRANK, R.C.
BOWMAN, TED R JORGENSEN

caeh in ihair Individuel capacily, Its Inee and lawful allormey-in-facd, with full pawsr and awthonly 1o glgn, soal, and execida on iis baheil any and ap bends and
urderakinge, and ¢iher obligatory Instrunerts of similas nature, in penaltles not excasding (he sum of

UNLIMITED

and ro Bing the Conmgany thesety, as fully 20 (o the same extent 25 [f Suth inskurnants wers signed by the duly adhorized oficers af the Compary; and all acis
of said Aftorney purewant to the authaelty glven are rersty ratified ard confimed.

This povses of allondty I8 mats and oxectded pursurnt o ang By sullarity of B followisg sesslution duly adopted by the board of directors of the Company:

"RESOLVED, that the president, or any vice president be, and aach heraby s, awharized snd empowased to apnoinl alorneys-In-fact of e Company,
ard to awharize thern fo exacule and deljver on bahal of \ne Company any and oll bonds, fame, apsications, Memarandems, uhderakings,
racogrizRNGes, kanafess, conlracts of indamnity, policies, contracls quareriesing the Kioally of porsons holding posiions of pubke or private nest, snd olber
wrilings obligatary in ralure thed e businees of the Camprry may reguire; and b modify or rewoke, with or wilhou! cause, any suah appoiniment or
authority; provided, however, that Ing autharty granted fanely shell in no way limit the sutority of other didy Bulbbized agents to sign and counteraign any
of sald documents an bahall of the Company "

‘RESELVED FURTHER. that sush altomeys-in-facl shal have kil power and aushoriy to execte ard deliver amy and #l such @ocements and to bind *he
Company subjecl o the lerns and lunitakions of the power of aflorrey lgeusd 10 rem, and o #ifix (he soal of e Company thereto; prov ded, however, that
5§23 geal shall not be necessary boe the validity of any such doturments.”

Thia pawer of altomney is sinned and soalcd undes ard by the fallawing ovlaws duly adepded by tho board of direstors pf the Company.

Execubion of Instruments. Any vice preaident, any sssistant secelary of any assistant traasurar shall have the power and authority (5 sign or aliast al
approved daguments, insluments, conlracds, of ather pepers in conneclion with the operatlon of the busingss of the company in addilion {o the cheirman of
the binard, the chiof execulive officer, president, treRIUET or EEOTETANY; Proviged, NOWOLSI, 1hG Sigriiura of any of them may be pirdad, engraved, or
stampad on eny approved dosument, conleast, instrumenl, o ddhor pepers of the Sompeny,

IN WITNESS VWHEREDF, tha Gompany bas cavssd this msliument to be seaied and duly akested by the signatura of ita officer tha 21" day of Fabuary, 2019,

o (0 W

Arfordo & Albanese, Vice Presldent of Nallomwide Muluad Ingurance Combany

Iﬁ‘h’ ACKNOWLEDGMENT
A bqg' STATE OF NEW YORE, COUNTY OF MEW YORK: 55
o 5 O this §7" day of February, 2619, belore me came the abowe-named offices for the Company
[ J aforeseid, lo ma parzonally known 1o be the officer dascribed In and who exssuted tha o eceding
E Insfrument, and he ackrowledged the erecudion of the sarme, and being by me duly swaen, depasas
‘ and says, that b 16 tha officer of the Company sforeaald, that the seal atfived nereto is {ha

goperete sesl of sald Company, and the said corporale seal Bod Tes signalure wers duly affixed
and supscrioed to sald instrurnent by the authorlly and directlon of seid Campany.

Sunainn © Lelh -
ivatney Fublz, Shle af e Ferk a
0 l!h:nwi:fj\;:::l:c::?ilwp %}Jf?b'.?f;f Ir? . }‘Ll‘f{fﬂ i;—(}l"
i 45

Corrwniiabon Eapieis bnptainkear 14, 220 ity Pt
e = ke Hy Cemwminima [aeymy
Szpke e T8,

GERTIFICATE
|, Laura B, Gy, Asarstant Secratiny of Lhe Compeny. do hareby cedily hat the feregolng i @ ful, inie and comect aopy of le orlginal powar of allomoy (s
Iy L Gompany; that the regeidion Induded therein 19 3 Gye and correct rangei from e minules of tho meetings of the boards of direclors and the same has
not baen ravoked ar amended In any manter that soid Artonio . #lbandso was on tha-date of tha mecution of the foregoing power of atlomey the daly elected
offices of the Company, and Lhe corsorala sesl and his signature s afficer were duly atfixed and subseribed t the sald Inalumeny By 10e authority of sald board
o iracless, arid 1ha feregoing power of atboeney |3 30t In fuli force and effec,

M WITHESS WHERECF, | huwe hereunto subseribad my namo as Azslelant Secratary, snd affled the corporate sedl of dald Company this _ 248h  day o

JMey @0 &{m 3 Gﬂ"u'g—

Aesrtart Secoalary

B0 1{2-1E00
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Ben Hur Agreement

Friday, June 11, 2021 2:02 PM
Agreement approves the transfers of ownership of the Ben Hur building from APD to Ben Hur LLC. It also

establishes a start date no later than December 31, 2021 with a completion date by the end of 2024. If
the project is not completed by the end of 2024, the County may assess a fine of $50 per day.
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PROJECT AGREEMENT
Ben Hur Building

THIS PROJECT AGREEMENT (“Project Agreement”) is made by and among the
MONTGOMERY COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS (“Agency”), AP DEVELOPMENT
LLC, an Indiana limited liability company (“APD”), and BEN HUR LLC, an Indiana limited liability
company (“Owner”).

WHEREAS, pursuant to Ind. Code § 6-1.1-24-6.9, the Agency acquired the real estate located at
227 East Main Street, Crawfordsville, Montgomery County, Indiana, known as the Ben Hur Building,
which real estate is particularly described on Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein (the

“Property”); and

WHEREAS, pursuant to procedures required by law, the Agency solicited proposals for the
acquisition and redevelopment of the Property; and

WHEREAS, the Owner proposed its acquisition and redevelopment of the Property as a mixed-
use facility containing a hotel and related uses (the “Owner Improvements™);

WHEREAS, the Agency found that the acquisition and redevelopment of the Property by ADP
and Owner is in the best interests of the City of Crawfordsville and its residents, and is in accordance with
the public purposes and provisions of applicable law; and

WHEREAS, the Agency transferred the Property to APD pursuant to a Warranty Deed dated
August 12, 2019 and recorded in the Montgomery County Recorder’s Office on August 23, 2019 as
Instrument No. 201904541 (*Warranty Deed™); and

WHEREAS, APD transferred the Property to Owner pursuant to a Quitclaim Deed dated August

June 23, 2020 and recorded in the Montgomery County Recorder’s Office on July 24, 2020 as Instrument
No. 202004051.

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and mutual obligations of the parties
hereto, each of them does hereby covenant and agree with the other as follows:

Section. 1. CONVEYANCE OF PROPERTY.

(a) Approval of Transfer. Agency hereby approves the transfer of the Property from
APD to Owner.

(b) Release of Deed Restrictions and Waiver of Reversion Rights. Agency hereby
(a) releases the conditions contained in paragraphs 1 through 5 of the Warranty Deed, and (b)
waives any and all rights of reversion, including but not limited to the right of reversion
contained in the Warranty Deed. Agency agrees to execute the Release of Deed Restrictions
and Waiver of Reversion Rights (“Release”) attached hereto as Exhibit B upon execution of
this Project Agreement, and further consents to the recording of the Release with the
Montgomery County Recorder’s Office.

Section 2. CONDITIONS PRECEDENT TO THE OWNER'S OBLIGATIONS. The
obligations of the Owner hereunder shall be subject to the fulfillment of the following conditions precedent,
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each of which shall have been satisfied on or before the time as stated herein; provided, however, that the
Owner may, conditionally or unconditionally, waive anyone or more of such conditions:

(a) Each of the representations and warranties of the Agency contained herein shall be
true in all material respects as of the Closing;

(b) The Agency shall in all material respects have complied with, fulfilled and
performed each of the covenants, terms and conditions to be complied with, fulfilled or
performed by the Agency hereunder;

(c) Agency shall have performed or committed to perform each of its covenants
contained herein;

(d) Owner shall have received (i) approval of Federal Historic Rehabilitation Tax
Credits (“Credits”) from the Indiana State Historic Preservation Office and the National Parks
Service to finance its redevelopment of the Property and (ii) a commitment from an investor to
acquire the Credits. The parties acknowledge that Owner’s ability to redevelop the Property is
primarily contingent on an award of Credits and that such an award is not guaranteed;

(e) Owner has obtained financing in an amount sufficient to enable Owner to develop,
rehabilitate and operate the Property on terms and conditions satisfactory to Owner; and

() The City of Crawfordsville, Indiana ("City") and City of Crawfordsville
Redevelopment Commission (“RDC™) shall each have performed all of its respective
obligations as set forth in the Economic Development Agreement executed by and among the
City, the RDC, ADP and Owner dated as of January 21, 2020.

Section 3. REPRESENTATIONS, WARRANTIES AND COVENANTS.

(a) Representations and Covenants by the Owner. The Owner represents, warrants
and covenants that:

(1)  The Owner has the power to enter into this Project Agreement and to perform
its obligations hereunder, and by proper action has been duly authorized to enter into this
Project Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and that this Project Agreement
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against the Owner.

(2) The Owner shall obtain all required permits, reviews, licenses, actions and
approvals, and shall meet all requirements of all local, state and federal laws and
regulations, which must be obtained or met before the Owner Improvements may be
constructed.

(3) The Owner will not enter into any contracts or undertakings that would limit,
conflict with or result in a breach of this Project Agreement.

(4)  The Owner shall construct any improvements on the Property in conformity
with local, state, and federal laws and regulations.

(5) The execution and delivery of this Project Agreement and the consummation
of the transactions herein contemplated will not conflict with, or constitute a breach or

2
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default under, the Owner's Articles of Organization of Operating Agreement, or the
provisions of any bond, debenture, note, other evidence of indebtedness, loan agreement,
lease or other contract to which the Owner is a party or by which it is bound, or to its actual
knowledge violate any law, regulation or order of the United States of America, the State
of Indiana, or any agency or political subdivision thereof, or any court order or judgment
in any proceeding to which the Owner is or was a party or by which it is bound.

(6) There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation at law or in equity, or by
or before any United States court, arbitrator, administrative agency, or other federal, state
or local governmental authority, pending or, to the actual knowledge of the Owner or any
of its members, threatened against the Owner or any of its members, wherein an
unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would have a material adverse effect on the validity
of this Project Agreement or a material adverse effect on the transactions contemplated
hereby.

(b) Representations and Covenants of the Agency. The Agency hereby represents,
warrants and covenants that:

(1)  All necessary action has been taken to authorize the Agency's execution of
this Project Agreement and the performance of the Agency's obligations hereunder, the
Agency has the power and authority under all federal, state and local law to enter into this
Project Agreement and perform its obligations hereunder, and this Project Agreement
constitutes a legal, valid and binding obligation enforceable against the Agency.

(2) The execution and delivery of this Project Agreement by the Agency does
not, and the consummation of the transactions contemplated hereby in compliance with the
terms hereof, will not conflict with or result in a violation of: (i) any provisions of any
instrument governing the Agency, or (ii) any judgment, order, writ, injunction, decree,
statute, law, ordinance, rule or regulation applicable to the Agency.

(3) As of the Effective Date, the Agency has not received any written notice of
any violation of any laws, rules or regulations applicable to any portion of the Property.

(4) The Agency owned fee simple title to the Property prior to its transfer of the
Property to APD pursuant to the Warranty Deed.

(5) To the best of knowledge of the Agency, the Property is not “property” as
that term is defined in Indiana Code § 13-11-2-174 and therefore is not subject to the
disclosure requirement of the Indiana Responsible Property Transfer Law.

(6) The Agency has made available to the Owner all relevant existing
documentation regarding the Property.

(7) The Agency has provided the legal description of the Property to the Owner.

(8) Agency confirms the assessed value of the Property was $73,200 effective
as of January 1, 2019 and January 1, 2020 and Agency will cooperate with Developer and
Owner in ensuring that the Property will not be assessed at an amount in excess of $73,200
prior to completion of the Owner Improvements.
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(9) The Agency will cooperate with the Owner in Owner's effort to obtain all
applicable permits, reviews, licenses, actions, consents and approvals and submitting all
applications necessary for the Owner Improvements.

(10) The Agency will not enter into any contracts, instruments or undertakings
which would limit or conflict with its obligations under, or constitute a breach of, this
Project Agreement or any related agreements.

(11) There is no action, suit, proceeding or investigation, at law or in equity or by
or before any United States court, arbitrator, administrative agency or other federal, state
or local government authority, pending or, to the actual knowledge or the Agency,
threatened against the Agency, wherein an unfavorable decision, ruling or finding would
have a material adverse effect on the validity of this Project Agreement or material adverse
effect on the transactions contemplated hereby.

Section 4. TIME FOR COMMENCEMENT AND COMPLETION OF
IMPROVEMENTS.

(a) Agency Commitments. The Agency hereby designates the Owner as developer
for the redevelopment of the Property. The provisions of this Project Agreement specify the
conditions applicable to construction of the Owner Improvements on the Property.

(b) Commencement. Owner shall commence construction of the Owner
Improvements on the Property no later than December 31, 2021 (“Commencement Date™) and
shall achieve substantial completion (“*Substantial Completion™) of the Owner Improvements no
later than December 31, 2024. Owner shall be deemed to have commenced construction of the
Owner Improvements at such time as Owner has begun environmental remediation, demolition or
physical repairs or rehabilitation to the Building.

(c) Unavoidable Delay. In the event of unavoidable delay in the performance by
cither party to this Project Agreement of any obligation under this Project Agreement due to acts
of God or of the public enemy, acts of the government, fires, floods, general shortages of labor,
equipment, facilities or materials, strike, COVID-19 or other pandemic, lockout or other industrial
or labor disturbance or action of labor unions or any interference in connection with the
construction at the Property due to the acts or omissions of the Owner resulting from the
construction of certain projects located adjacent to the Property (an “Unavoidable Delay™), the time
for performance of said obligations shall be extended for the period of the Unavoidable Delay. The
party seeking the benefit of the provisions of this subsection shall, within thirty (30) days after the
beginning of such Unavoidable Delay, notify the other party in writing of the cause thereof and
request an extension for the period of the Unavoidable Delay. If a party fails to send such notice
within thirty (30) days after the beginning of such Unavoidable Delay, but notifies the other party
prior to the expiration of such Unavoidable Delay, the party shall be entitled to extend any
applicable time period by the time period equal to the difference between (1) the time period of
such Unavoidable Delay, and (2) the number of days from the date of the commencement of the
Unavoidable Delay to the date of notification of the other party. Notwithstanding the foregoing,
any Unavoidable Delay shall not extend beyond a period of more than ninety (90) days without the
prior written consent of both parties hereto.

Section S. ENFORCEMENT OF PROJECT AGREEMENT. The Agency, APD, the

Owner or their successors and assigns, may enlist the assistance of any appropriate body to use its authority
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to require remedial action in compliance with this Project Agreement. Furthermore, the Agency, APD, the
Owner or their successors and assigns may enter into a civil lawsuit to stop or rescind actions not in
conformance with this Project Agreement, or to enforce contractual agreements to ensure conformance with
this Project Agreement.

Section 6. ASSIGNMENT OF PROJECT AGREEMENT AND TRANSFER OF
PROPERTY. The Owner will have the right to develop, enter into agreements to develop and or transfer
the Property to an affiliate of Owner of the Property as long as these actions will result in development that
is consistent with this Project Agreement.

Section 7. EVENTS OF DEFAULT BY THE OWNER.

(a) Event of Default by the Owner. The term “Event of Default” shall mean,
whenever it is used in this Project Agreement, any one or more of the following events (and the
term “Default” shall mean any event which would with the passage of time or giving of notice, or
both be an “Event of Default™ hereunder):

(1)  Subject to Unavoidable Delay, failure by the Owner to observe and perform
any covenant, condition, obligation or agreement on its part to be observed or performed
hereunder within 60 (60) days after written notice to the Owner specifying such failure and
requesting that it be remedied (or within such other period as otherwise expressly provided
in this Project Agreement), or within such further period of time as is reasonably necessary
to cure such failure, but only if the Owner has within said thirty (30) days provided the
Agency with assurances reasonably deemed adequate by the Agency that the Owner will
cure the failure as soon as it is reasonably possible; provided, no cure rights are provided
in this Project Agreement to extend the time to perform any of the obligations of the Owner
described in Section 4 hereof

(2) Subject to Unavoidable Delay, failure by the Owner to redevelop the
Property in accordance with this Project Agreement, and the Owner fails to cure said
default within thirty (30) days after written demand from the Agency to do so, or within
such further period of time as is reasonably necessary to cure such failure, but only if the
Owner has within said thirty (30) days provided the Agency with assurances reasonably
deemed adequate by the Agency that the Owner will cure the failure as soon as it is
reasonably possible; provided, no cure rights are provided in this Project Agreement to
extend the time to perform any of the obligations of the Owner described in Section 4
hereof; and (5) Subject to Unavoidable Delay, failure by the Owner to commence
construction by the Commencement Date as outlined in this Project Agreement, and the
Owner fails to cure said default within thirty (30) days after written demand from the
Agency to do so.

(b) Remedies on the Developer’s Default. Whenever any Event of Default by the
Developer occurs and is continuing, the Agency may take any one or more of the following actions
and/or any other action permitted in this Project Agreement:

(1)  Upon seven (7) days' written notice by the Agency to the Developer, suspend
its performance under this Project Agreement until it receives assurances from the
Developer, reasonably deemed adequate by the Agency, that the Developer will cure its
default and continue its performance under this Project Agreement;
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(2) Take whatever action at law or in equity may appear necessary or desirable
to the Agency to collect any payments due under this Project Agreement, or to enforce
performance and observance of any obligation, agreement or covenant of the Developer
under this Project Agreement.

(3) In the event Owner does not achieve Substantial Completion of the Owner
Improvements on or before December 31, 2024, Owner shall pay to the Agency the sum
or $50 for each day beginning January 1, 2025 until achievement of Substantial
Completion.

Section 8. EFFECTIVE DATE. The effective date of this Project Agreement, and the term
“Effective Date” as used in this Project Agreement, shall be the latest calendar date on which any party
hereto has executed this Project Agreement.

Section 9. MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS.

(a) Notices. All notices, certificates, requests or other communications required
hereunder shall be sufficient only if given in writing and shall be deemed given on the date of
service if delivered personally or by next day delivery, or three (3) days after mailing by registered
or certified mail, return receipt requested, postage prepaid, addressed as follows:

To the Agency: Board of Commissioners of Montgomery County
110 West South Street
Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933
Attn: John Frey, President

With a copy to: Kirtley, Taylor, Sims, Chadd & Minnette, P.C.
105 North Washington Street
Crawfordsville, IN 47933
Attn: Dan Taylor, Esq.

To the Owner: Ben Hur LLC
8608 Highwood Lane

Indianapolis, Indiana 46278
Attn: Jonathan R. Anderson, Esq.

Either party hereunder may, by notice given hereunder, designate any further or different addresses
to which subsequent notices, certificates, requests or other communications shall be sent.

(b) Time is of the Essence. Except for extensions of time resulting from Unavoidable
Delay, the times for performance provided in this Project Agreement are essential due to the
obligations and expenditures of the parties. If a specific time is not specified, performance shall be
prompt and with due regard to the conditions of performance of the other party in reliance thereon.

(c) Cooperation Between Parties. Approvals required by either party shall not be
unreasonably withheld, delayed or conditioned.

New Section 1 Page 135



(d) Binding Effect. This Project Agreement shall inure to the benefit of and shall be
binding upon the Agency, APD and the Owner, and their respective legal representatives,
successors and assigns, subject to the terms and conditions of this Project Agreement.

(e) Amendments and Modifications. This Project Agreement supersedes all prior
negotiations and agreements, and constitutes the entire agreement between the parties with respect
to the subject matter hereof. No change, amendment or modification to, or extension of or waiver
of, any provision of or consent provided under this Project Agreement shall be valid unless such
change, amendment, modification, extension, consent or waiver is in writing and signed by both
parties to this Project Agreement or, in the case of consent or waiver, by the party granting the
same.

(H Severability. In case any section or provision of this Project Agreement, or in the
case any covenant, stipulation, obligation, agreement, act or action, or part thereof, made, assumed,
entered into or taken under this Project Agreement, or any application thereof, is, for any reason,
held to be illegal or invalid, or is at any time inoperable by reason of any law or actions thereunder,
such illegality, invalidity or inoperability shall not affect the remainder thereof, or any covenant,
stipulation, obligation, agreement, act or action, or part thereof, made, assumed, entered into or
taken under this Project Agreement, which shall, at the time, be construed and enforced as if such
illegal, invalid or inoperable portion were not contained herein.

(g) Governing Law. This Project Agreement shall be construed and enforced in
accordance with the laws of the State of Indiana.

(h) Captions. The captions of the various sections herein contained are solely for the
convenience of the parties hereto and shall not be construed to interpret or limit the content of any
provision or section of this Project Agreement.

(1) No Waiver. The failure of any party to enforce any provision of this Project
Agreement shall not be construed to be a waiver of any of the party's rights, either of the subject
provision, any continuing breach or later or other breach; provided, however, that any party may,
at its sole option, waive in writing any requirement, covenant or condition herein established for
the benefit of such party without affecting any of the other terms or provisions of this Project
Agreement. No delay on the part of any party in the exercise of any power or right hereunder shall
operate as a waiver thereof nor shall any single or partial exercise of any power or right preclude
other or further exercise thereof or the exercise of any other power or right. All rights and remedies
existing under this Project Agreement shall be cumulative and shall be in addition to those
otherwise provided by law.

§)] Jurisdiction and Venue. The Montgomery County, Indiana, courts shall have
exclusive jurisdiction and venue for the resolution of any and all matters relating to this Project
Agreement.

(k) Language of Project Agreement. This Project Agreement is the result of
negotiations between the parties and no party shall be deemed to be the drafter of this Project
Agreement. The language of all parts of this Project Agreement shall in all cases be construed as a
whole, according to their fair meaning, and not strictly for or against any party.

THE REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE IS INTENTIONALLY BLANK
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have caused this Project Agreement to be duly executed
on or as of the day and year set forth below.

“AGENCY™

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY, INDIANA

By:

John Frey, President
sGAPD!!

AP DEVELOPMENT LLC

By:

Jonathan R. Anderson, Manager
“OWNER”

BEN HUR LLC

By:

Jonathan R. Anderson, Manager
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Exhibit A

Legal Description

The East 70.75 feet of Lot Numbered 154, as the same is known and designated on the
Original Plat of the City of Crawfordsville, Montgomery County, Indiana, as appears
of Record in Deed Record 1, Page 9, in the Office of the Recorder of Montgomery
County, Indiana.

This real estate is commonly known as 227 East Main Street, Crawfordsville, Indiana
47933.
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Exhibit B

RELEASE OF DEED RESTRICTIONS AND
WAIVER OF RIGHT OF REVERSION

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF MONTGOMERY COUNTY, INDIANA, having its
office at 110 West South Boulevard, Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933 (“Grantor™), hereby (a) releases the
conditions contained in paragraphs 1 through 5 of that certain Warranty Deed dated August 12, 2019 and
recorded in the Montgomery County Recorder’s Office on August 23, 2019 as Instrument No. 201904541

(“Warranty Deed”), and (b) waives any and all rights of reversion, including but not limited to the right of
reversion contained in the Warranty Deed.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, Grantor has executed this Release of Deed Restrictions and Waiver of
Right of Reversion this _ day of June, 2021.

BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF
MONTGOMERY COUNTY, INDIANA

By:
John Frey, President

ATTEST:

10
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Plan Commission Appointment

Wednesday, June 09, 2021 8:16 AM
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Dossett, Lori

From: Klein, Tom

Sent: Tuesday, June 08, 2021 11:42 PM
To: Dossett, Lori

Subject: Fwd: Plan Commission

For agenda

Get Outlook for 10S

From: Frey, John <John.Frey@montgomerycounty.in.gov>

Sent: Tuesday, June 8, 2021 2:42:17 PM

To: Klein, Tom <Tom.Klein@montgomerycounty.in.gov>; Dan Taylor <dtaylor@tcmsclaw.com>; Guard, Dan
<Dan.Guard@montgomerycounty.in.gov>; Fulwider, Jim <Jim.Fulwider@montgomerycounty.in.gov>
Subject: Fwd: Plan Commission

Need to get this replacement on the agenda.
Bob Campbell has agreed to serve.

John Frey

Begin forwarded message:

From: Aaron Morgan <morgansglass@sbcglobal.net>

Date: June 8, 2021 at 2:04:48 PM EDT

To: Bonwell Marc <marc.bonwell@montgomerycounty.in.gov>, Tom Klein
<Tom.Klein@montgomerycounty.in.gov>, John Frey <John.Frey@montgomerycounty.in.gov>
Subject: Plan Commission

Mare, Tom, and John,

| have enjoyed serving many years on the Montgomery County Plan Commission. | am very pleased with
the direction our county is heading. | am also looking forward to spending more of my free time with my
family and serving our community in other ways. The time has come that | can not give the Plan
Commission my very best, and most that know me know that if | can not give my best, it is time to step
down. Having said that, please accept this as my resignation from the Montgomery County Plan
Commission. Please continue the great work that our county has seen in the recent years. | feel
privileged to have been appointed to the commission and privileged to have been a part of positive
growth within the county.

Thank you,

Aaron Morgan
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Tyler Technologies Memo

Friday, June 11, 2021 10:38 AM
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Dossett, Lori

From: Bentley, Sherri

Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 10:37 AM
To: Dossett, Lori

Subject: Re: Tyler Contract

Tyler will be taking over the Reassessment portion of Kirsten’s duties, including field work, on as many parcels as her
salary will allow. Because we are not adding them as a full Reassessment vendor, we are still piecing out the parcels.
Kirsten also performed duties that do not fall under “Reassessment”, such as personal property, sales disclosures and
mobile homes. These duties are being reassigned to other deputies in my office and should technically be paid for out of
County General.

This amendment includes what | can afford with the remainder of Kirsten’s 2021 salary. We will need to amend it again
later this year for 2022 with her full salary. Unfortunately, Reassessment is costly whether | vend it out or complete it in-
house. The savings aren’t really in my budget, but the employee benefits that the County will not have to pay.

| left a message for each of the Commissioners, and am available by cell phone if they want to speak to me today about
this.

Please let me know if you have any other questions.

Thanks,
Sherri
Sent from my iPad

> 0OnJun 11, 2021, at 9:55 AM, Dossett, Lori <Lori.Dossett@montgomerycounty.in.gov> wrote:
>

> What duties did Kristen perform that Tyler Technologies will be doing in her place? Do you have any estimates/figures
as far as savings using Tyler?

> Thanks!

> Lori

>

> —mem Original Message-----

> From: Bentley, Sherri <Sherri.Bentley@montgomerycounty.in.gov>

> Sent: Friday, June 11, 2021 9:12 AM

> To: Dossett, Lori <Lori.Dossett@montgomerycounty.in.gov>

> Subject: Tyler Contract

>

> If you could let the Commissioners know that | have decided against replacing Kirsten Southwood and have instead
decided to expand my contract with Tyler Technologies.

>

> A representative from Tyler should be at the meeting if they have any technical questions.

>

> Also, please give them my apologies for my absence.

>

> Thanks,

> Sherri

> Sent from my iPad
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Assessor Vendor Contract -Tyler Technologies

Wednesday, June 09, 2021 9:02 AM
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o tyler

..
AMENDMENT

This amendment (“Amendment”) is effective as of the date of signature of the last party to sign as
indicated below (“Amendment Effective Date”), by and between Tyler Technologies, Inc. with offices at
One Tyler Way, Moraine, Ohio 45439 (“Contractor”) and the Montgomery County Assessor and the
Board of County Commissioners of Montgomery County, Indiana, with offices at 100 East Main Street,
Suite 105, Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933 (collectively, “County”).

WHEREAS, Contractor and County are parties to a Prescribed Contract for Annual Adjustments and
Cyclical Reassessment dated June 26, 2018 (“Contract”); and

WHEREAS, Contractor and County desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, Contractor and
County agree as follows:

1. Under Article 13, Consideration, the County has requested that 1,385 improved residential and
410 improved agricultural parcels be reviewed by the Contractor.

2. In consideration for reviewing 1,385 improved residential and 408 improved agricultural parcels,
the County will pay Contractor at the agreed upon overage rate(s) not to exceed $20,000.00:

e Residential $10 per parcel — $13,850 total
e Agricultural $15 per parcel - $6,150 total

3. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Contract.

4. Except as expressly indicated in this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Contract
shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth
below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Montgomery County Assessor and the Board of
County Commissioners of Montgomery County,

o s TR

Name:_Gus Tenhundfeld Name:
Title:__Inside Sales Manager Title:
Date: 6/2/2021 Date:
o tyler
1
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o tyler

..
AMENDMENT

This amendment (“Amendment”) is effective as of the date of signature of the last party to sign as
indicated below (“Amendment Effective Date”), by and between Tyler Technologies, Inc. with offices at
One Tyler Way, Moraine, Ohio 45439 (“Contractor”) and the Montgomery County Assessor and the
Board of County Commissioners of Montgomery County, Indiana, with offices at 100 East Main Street,
Suite 105, Crawfordsville, Indiana 47933 (collectively, “County”).

WHEREAS, Contractor and County are parties to a Prescribed Contract for Annual Adjustments and
Cyclical Reassessment dated June 26, 2018 (“Contract”); and

WHEREAS, Contractor and County desire to amend the terms of the Agreement as provided herein.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual promises hereinafter contained, Contractor and
County agree as follows:

1. Under Article 13, Consideration, the County has requested that 1,385 improved residential and
410 improved agricultural parcels be reviewed by the Contractor.

2. In consideration for reviewing 1,385 improved residential and 408 improved agricultural parcels,
the County will pay Contractor at the agreed upon overage rate(s) not to exceed $20,000.00:

e Residential $10 per parcel — $13,850 total
e Agricultural $15 per parcel - $6,150 total

3. This Amendment shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the terms and
conditions of the Contract.

4. Except as expressly indicated in this Amendment, all other terms and conditions of the Contract
shall remain in full force and effect.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have executed this Amendment as of the dates set forth
below.

Tyler Technologies, Inc. Montgomery County Assessor and the Board of
County Commissioners of Montgomery County,

o s TR

Name:_Gus Tenhundfeld Name:
Title:__Inside Sales Manager Title:
Date: 6/2/2021 Date:
o tyler
1
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Introduction: Ordinance 2020-17

Friday, June 11, 2021 10:22 AM

Ordinance establishes a new fund for a $10,000 grant for the Drug Court.
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Montgomery County Board of Commissioners

Ordinance 2021-17

AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE
2021 PROBLEM SOLVING DRUG COURT GRANT FUND

Whereas, the Montgomery County Drug Court has been approved by the
Indiana Supreme Court, Office of Judicial Administration, Indiana Office of Court
Services to receive a grant in the amount of $10,000 for training, travel, incentives,
drug testing, transportation, participant treatment and emergency housing, as

detailed in the grant agreement; and

Whereas, the use of funds from the grant award may be used by the County
Drug Court consistent with the terms and conditions of the grant award and grant

agreement; and

Whereas, the Montgomery County Board of Commissioners finds that a new
fund, the 2021 Drug Court Problem Solving Grant Fund, should be created in order
to receive the funds from the Indiana Supreme Court and to provide a mechanism for

appropriation and accounting for the funds used.

Therefore, it is ordained that a new section, Section 35.160 of the Montgomery
County Code, is hereby added to the County Code and that this new section shall read

as follows:
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Introduction: Ordinance 2021-18

Wednesday, June 09, 2021 9:13 AM

Establishes new fund for a $78,787.13 grant for the Department of Health to promote and provide
Covid-19 vaccinations focused on vulnerable and hard to reach populations.
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Montgomery County Board of Commissioners

Ordinance 2021-18

AN ORDINANCE CREATING THE IMMUNIZATION AND VACCINES FOR
CHILDREN-COVID 19 GRANT FUND

Whereas, the Montgomery County Department of Health has received a grant
to promote and provide Covid-19 vaccinations focused on vulnerable and hard to

reach populations; and

Whereas, the grant is from the Indiana Department of Health in the amount

of $78,787.13; and

Whereas, the Montgomery County Board of Commissioners finds that a new
fund, the Immunization and Vaccines for Children-Covid 19 Grant Fund, should be
created in order to receive the monies from the grant and to provide a mechanism for

the use and accounting of these monies; and

Therefore, it is ordained that a new section, Section 35.165 of the Montgomery
County Code, is hereby added to the County Code and that this new section shall read

as follows:

“§ 35.166 IMMUNIZATION AND VACCINES FOR CHILDREN-COVID 19 GRANT
FUND

(A) Source of Funds. The Montgomery County Board of Commissioners hereby
establishes the Immunization and Vaccines for Children-Covid 19 Grant
Fund. The fund shall consist of monies received from the Immunization and
Vaccines for Children-Covid 19 Grant, as provided for in the grant agreement.
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(B) Use of Funds. All money in the Fund will be used as provided for in the grant
award, in a form and manner consistent with the award.

(C) Non-Reverting Fund. This is a Non-Reverting Fund.”

It is further ordained that this ordinance shall be effective upon adoption.

It is further ordained that all other provisions of the Montgomery County Code
of Ordinances which are not specifically amended by this ordinance shall remain in

full force and effect.

Adopted this day of , 2021.

Montgomery County Board of
Commissioners:

John Frey, President

James D. Fulwider, Vice President

Dan Guard, Member

Attest:

Jennifer Andel, Auditor
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